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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ Results

BR B4 AT 7 Profit before taxation 106,418 226,585 164,487 176,834 251,365
KT Income tax expense (2,740) (4,346) (560) (3,946) (10,022)
AEERF Profit for the year 103,678 222,239 163,927 172,888 241,343

KEREF/ (BE)SER Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
ARFEREEA Equity holders of the Company 104,825 222,239 163,927 172,888 241,343
FERER Non-controlling interests (1,147) — — — =
REERR Profit for the year 103,678 222,239 163,927 172,888 241,343

2y vl R A RN A Y A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

BB
HK$ Ten Thousand

25,000

2008 2009
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

E{E&£E AR 27 Min Xin Holdings Limited

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(£7| Restated) (7] Restated) ~ (E5| Restated) (57| Restated)
(fT% Note22)  (FFfENote2.2) (B Note22) (7% Note2.2)
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFE Net assets
mE - BERK Property, plant and equipment 25,634 25,611 24,407 22,892 21,644
BEMF Investment properties 76,713 90,512 86,713 98,281 95,695
LRZHIEE Jointly controlled entities 741,488 939,836 1,143,062 1,367,863 1,649,907
pERE Associates 63,270 65,106 36,841 44,735 11,654
AHNESHER Available-for-sale financial assets 620,768 1,140,870 576,576 656,640 488,313
BRBEAE Reinsurance assets 1,805 1,666 1,959 1,903 1,665
EXHREHAE Deferred income tax assets 526 525 673 658 475
RBEEFE Net current assets 268,696 540,657 456,930 497,485 430,842
RITER Bank borrowings (47,929) (143,588) (53,946) (113,551) -
REE f(J Insurance contracts (26,983) (22,109) (17,832) (18,306) (15,262)
EEmEHAR Deferred income tax liabilities (29,316) (6,748) (7,201) (10,570) (18,211)
EERE Net assets 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182 2,548,030 2,666,722
BRAH Total equity
B Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429
AlfEfEE Other reserves 1,129,435 1,919,783 1,562,840 1728894 | 1,761,357
RE i Retained profits
BIER 2 Proposed dividend 18,377 27,566 13,783 13,783 13,783
it ; Others 87,431 224,531 212,130 345,924 432,153
RN B ERAR Amount recognised directly in equity
RIELENERYEE relating to non-current asset classified
BHEHZE as held-for-sale — 1,029 — — —
ARAEBHFEA Total equity attributable to equity
EhERA%E holders of the Company 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182 2,548,030 2,666,722

A Vi) A 4 AN A i A

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

BB
HK$ Million

1500 — — —
1,000

500

2007 2008 2009
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SEEMECRRSREBRELRELZEK
RENTBMEERIEN R SRREBLE
TE-TFHRTRE - BREERELE
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A BEE - T B A ERIRE IR
RER -

TETF AEBEEREEZESZEEA
JE(EGE A E N B 41348 T - HERIZZEE A,
F FF39.6% - FAREAREFE 52,5311 ©

Large-scale fiscal and monetary stimulus initiatives launched in
the wake of the international financial crisis led to a rebound in
the global economy in 2010. However, while the emerging
economies enjoyed rapid growth, advanced countries reported
slower progress. On the other hand, the economy of Mainland
China sustained a relatively steady development.

In 2010, the Group recorded an audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of HK$241.34 million, an increase
of 39.6% over that of 2009. Basic earnings per share amounted
to 52.53 HK cents.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Benefiting from the increase of HK$50.41 million in the share of
profit after tax of Xiamen International Bank, and the share of
gain of HK$10.69 million of an indirectly-owned associated
company from the disposal of its equity interest in the project
company with toll road investment in Mainland China, the Group
reported an increase in the consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders by HK$68.46 million as compared to that of 2009.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 17th
June 2011 the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$13,782,860 for the year ended 31st
December 2010 (2009:final dividend of 3 HK cents per ordinary
share totaling HK$13,782,860). The proposed dividend, if
approved, will be paid on 2nd September 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Banking Business

The Group, through its 36.75% interest in the Xiamen
International Bank Group, conducts banking business in
Mainland China and Macao. During the year, the banking
business of the Group recorded a profit after tax of HK$228.51
million, an increase of 28.3% over that of 2009.

For the year under review, Xiamen International Bank seriously
implemented its annual strategic principles.Under the intensely
competitive environment, it sought to capitalise on improved
investment sentiment and the upturn in economic activity to
moderately expand the scale of its deposit and loan business.
While maintaining its traditional bank services, it also
strengthened the development of new areas of business with
satisfactory growth in the customer bases, revenue and profits.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

Xiamen International Bank'’s audited consolidated net profit
prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises went up by 30.4% to RMB538.5 million from
RMB412.97 million in 2009.

As at the end of 2010, the total assets of Xiamen International
Bank Group grew by about 51.2% to RMB70.9 billion. Loans to
customers and customers’ deposits were RMB44.2 billion and
RMB55.1 billion respectively, an increase of 54.5% and 31.3%
respectively, as compared to those at the end of 2009. Driven by
the strong growth of lending business in Mainland China during
the year, the net interest income boosted by 39%, and the net
fee and commission income also rose by 43% as compared to
those of 2009.

Looking ahead into 2011, notwithstanding many stimulus
packages now being phased out, challenges still remain. With
the second round of quantitative easing launched by the United
States, and the austerity measures and sovereign credit crisis of
various European countries, the global economy still face
uncertain market conditions. Despite recent measures by the
Central Government to curb rising inflation and property prices,
steady income growth and private consumption have sustained
strong domestic demand. Xiamen International Bank Group will
exploit the opportunities arising from its restructuring by
strengthening the development of new business markets and
widen the customer base with a view to creating a new future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
I nsurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“MXIC"), the Group's
wholly-owned subsidiary, registered a profit after tax of HK$6.85
million for the year ended 31st December 2010, an increase of
108.2% from HK$3.29 million in 2009. This was due to the
continual improvement of the underwriting result, especially in
motor business, as well as the strong real estate market in Hong
Kong.The management team of MXIC will continue its effort in
improving the insurance business performance.

Property Development and I nvestment

The property development and investment business of the
Group comprises the real estate development business and the
leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland China.In
2010, the property development and investment business
reported a loss after taxation of HK$1.24 million, which was
HK$1.2 million lower than that of 2009.

Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin
Suzhou”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which
undertakes the real estate development business in Suzhou,
Mainland China (the “Suzhou Project”), has obtained pre-sale
permits in the first half of 2010.As at the end of 2010, the presale
construction area was about 9,051 square meters with
contracted sales of about RMB90.37 million.

Given the increase in the advertising expenditure of RMB3.76
million during the year, Minxin Suzhou recorded a loss of RMB7.5
million for 2010, an increase of RMB3.23 million as compared to
the loss of RMB4.27 million in 2009. Minxin Suzhou pledged its
land use right of a parcel of land to obtain a construction loan
of RMB150 million in July 2009, of which RMB50 million has been
repaid before the end of the year. During the year, the interest
expenses of the loan amounted to RMB8.53 million have been
capitalised as properties under development for sale. The
capitalised interest expenses for 2009 were RMB4.35 million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

During the year, the Group has fully repaid the outstanding
balance of the banking facility of HK$54 million for setting up
Minxin Suzhou. Owing to the smaller amount of loan principal
which lasted for only three months, the interest expenses for
the year declined by HK$2.18 million to HK$0.25 million as
compared to the interest expenses of HK$2.43 million for 2009.

Since 2010, the Chinese Government has implemented a series
of tightening policies aiming to curb the overheating and
speculation in the residential property market, including
increasing the threshold for loans for the second house and
restricting loans for the third house, and certain cities were
designated as the pilot cities for collection of property tax.
Moreover, policies to restrict purchase and set price ceilings in
residential property market have effectively reduced the
demand for residential properties in major cities. To curb
liquidity and ease inflation, the central bank raised the deposit
reserve ratio eight times and increased the deposit and loan
interest rate three times.

As one of the participants in the real estate development market
in Mainland China, the Group is also facing difficult time. The
Group believes that the urbanisation of China will be the
greatest impetus to the growth of its real estate industry in the
coming future.The Group will therefore persist in adopting its
prudent strategy for land acquisition, and will take part in
suitable land auctions in second-tier cities to explore promising
new projects.

Apart from generating a steady rental income to the Group, the
Group’s investment properties and car parks in Fuzhou, Fujian
Province (the “Fuzhou Property”) represent growing capital
value in the long term and can also act as quality securities for
acquiring longer term finance. The Fuzhou Property recorded
an increase of 2.6% in rental income to RMB3.14 million in 2010
as compared to RMB3.06 million in 2009. As at 31st December
2010, the Fuzhou Property reported a rise of 24.8% in its fair
value to RMB49.19 million as compared to RMB39.43 million as
at 31st December 2009. During the year, the Group recognised
a fair value gain of HK$13.22 million and a fair value gain after
deferred tax of HK$5.74 million,as compared to a fair value gain
of HK$6.24 million and a fair value gain after deferred tax of
HK$3.02 million in 2009.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc. (“Huaneng
Shares’)

In 2010, despite the economy of Mainland China maintained a
steady and faster development, its share market was relatively
volatile. As at the end of December 2010, the Shanghai
Composite Index slipped by more than 400 points as compared
to that at the end of 2009.The closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-
share also fell to RMB5.75 per share as at 31st December 2010
from RMB8 per share as at 31st December 2009.The fair value
of the Group’s investment in 72 million Huaneng Shares
measured with reference to the closing bid price of Huaneng’s
A-share decreased by approximately RMB162 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$168.33 million) to approximately RMB414
million (equivalent to approximately HK$488.31 million) as
compared to that at the end of 2009.The loss of approximately
HK$168.33 million arising from the change in its fair value
(2009: fair value gain of approximately HK$90.84 million) was
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the investment revaluation reserve.

Being classified as a long term available-for-sale financial asset
of the Group, Huaneng Shares generate a steady dividend
income to the Group.The Group will fully exploit this quality
asset in its future development.

During the year, Huaneng distributed a final dividend for 2009
of RMBO0.21 per share.The Group recorded a dividend income
of HK$17.32 million, as compared to the final dividend for 2008
of RMBO.1 per share totaling HK$8.17 million received by the
Group in 2009.

Huaneng announced that in 2010, its total power generation
within China on consolidated basis amounted to 257 billion kWh,
representing an increase of 26.3% over the same period last year.
Accumulated electricity sold amounted to 241.8 billion kWh.The
accumulated power generation of Tuas Power Limited in
Singapore of 2010 accounted for a market share of 24.7% in
Singapore, representing an increase of 0.4% as compared to
24.3% of the same period last year. However, it is anticipated
that the operations will still face various uncertain factors due
to the rising cost of electricity as a result of the increasing fuel
cost and tense supply.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
High-Tech Investments

Min Faith Investments Limited (“Min Faith”), an investment of
the Group engaging in the manufacturing of industrial digital
instrumentations and smart electric meters through its
subsidiaries in Mainland China, has achieved in 2010 a 14%
increase in sales quantity of digital instrumentations over the
previous year thanks to the efforts of closely following market
trend, strengthening R&D on new products, and constantly
upgrading traditional products. However, due to the substantial
drop in the sales quantity of electric meters etc., as a result of
the adjustment of the tendering system and lack of gain and
written back on sales of a subsidiary, Min Faith recorded a profit
after tax of HK$12.77 million in 2010, a decrease of 34.3% as
compared to the record profit in 2009. Min Faith will continue
to strengthen its R&D, production and marketing of industrial
digital instrumentations. Meanwhile, it will actively explore any
opportunity that will bring profit growth in order to generate
greater interests for the shareholders in the new year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Net Asset Value per Share

The Group persists in investing prudently as usual and strives
to maintain a healthy financial position. Based on 459,428,656
shares in issue (2009: 459,428,656 shares), the net asset value
per share was HK$5.8 (2009: HK$5.55) at 31st December 2010.

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

As at 31st December 2010, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$364.33 million (2009: HK$486.41 million) and the ratio of
total liabilities to total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company was 0.14 (2009:0.19). As at 31st December 2010,
the current assets and current liabilities of the Group were
HK$761.7 million (2009: HK$841.46 million) and HK$330.85
million (2009: HK$343.98 million) respectively with a current
ratio of 2.3 (2009: 2.4).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Borrowings and Charged Assets

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had outstanding bank
loans principal of HK$132.95 million to be repaid within one year.
In terms of currency denomination, the outstanding bank loans
principal can be divided into HK$117.95 million (88.7%) in
Renminbi and HKS$15 million (11.3%) in Hong Kong Dollars.The
outstanding bank loans of the Group are subject to floating
interest rates.In addition, the Group had undrawn revolving loan
facility and overdraft facility totaling HK$45 million as at 31st
December 2010.Subsequent to the reporting date, the revolving
loan facility of HK$35 million was drew down by the Group.

As at 31st December 2010, the above bank loans were secured
by the Group’s certain properties and land use right (recognised
as costs of properties under development for sale) with a book
value of approximately HK$352.86 million.

Save for the above, the other assets of the Group have not been
pledged as at 31st December 2010.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31st December 2010, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings and advances divided by total net assets) still
maintained at a relatively low level and was only 5% (2009: 8.8%).

Cash Position

The Group’s bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. As at 31st December 2010, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$120.49 million (2009: HK$365.33
million) of which 78.5% were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, 16.9% in Renminbi and 4.6% in other currencies (2009:
28.7% in Hong Kong Dollars, 69.8% in Renminbi and 1.5% in
other currencies).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Cash Position (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary maintains
at all times a portion of its funds, being not less than HK$16
million, in bank deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a
bank deposit of approximately MOP4.93 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$4.79 million) for fulfilling certain
requirements under the Macao Insurance Ordinance.

According to the guarantees provided by a subsidiary of the
Group in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
to certain purchasers of that subsidiary’s properties in Mainland
China, a sum of approximately RMB0.73 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.86 million) held by that subsidiary was
placed at a designated bank account as deposits for potential
default in payment of mortgage loans advanced to those
property purchasers. Such deposits will only be released when
those property purchasers obtain the “property title certificate”
which is then pledged to the banks.

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s assets, liabilities and receipts and payments are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. As
the exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars has
increased as compared to that at the end of 2009, the Group’s
net monetary assets denominated in Renminbi has resulted in
translation gain of approximately HK$0.37 million recorded by
the Group in 2010 (2009: approximately HK$0.03 million). Save
for the above, the Group anticipates that it will not face material
risks arising from foreign exchange rates fluctuation.

Commitments

As at 31st December 2010, the commitments of the Group for
its real estate development business amounted to RMB25.05
million, equivalent to approximately HK$29.55 million (2009:
RMB89.91 million, equivalent to approximately HK$102.5
million), and the capital commitments relating to property, plant
and equipment amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million
(2009: approximately HK$0.2 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Commitments (Continued)

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Group incorporated in
Mainland China has obtained approval for change to an
investment holding company during the year, the Group
therefore committed to inject the balance of registered capital
of HK$297 million into that subsidiary within two years pursuant
to relevant approval documents. As at 31st December 2010, the
Group’s commitment in respect of the additional capital
injection was HK$297 million (2009: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2010, a subsidiary of the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks to certain purchasers of that subsidiary’s properties in
Mainland China.The maximum guarantees given to those banks
amounted to RMB24.26 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$28.61 million) as at 31st December 2010 (2009: Nil).

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by those purchasers, that subsidiary is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by those
defaulted purchasers to the banks and that subsidiary is entitled
to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The guarantee period starts from the date of grant
of the relevant mortgage loans and ends when the property
purchaser obtains the “property title certificate” which is then
pledged to the relevant banks.The Group considers that the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty in case of default in
payments and therefore no provision has been made for those
guarantees.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had 67 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience.The Group also provides other benefits to the
employees including retirement benefits and medical scheme.
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PROSPECTS

Looking into the year of 2011, the top priority of the central
government’s economic policy will be to curb inflation. With the
continuous increase of deposit reserve ratio and the deposit and
lending rates, plus the announcement of property tax by local
governments, the residential property market in Mainland China
will have to face an ordeal and may then lead to a consolidation
of the real estate industry. As credit tightens, the Board foresees
that the Group will have to undergo a more difficult and
complicated operating environment. Hence, the Group will,
under the premise of ensuring the safety of its cash flow,
capitalise on the macro-economic policy and opportunities to
prudently acquire quality land at reasonable cost.

As for the banking investment, the Company made an
announcement on 1st March 2011 to provide an update relating
to certain recent development regarding the restructuring of
Xiamen International Bank. At the request of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission, the Company has undertaken that
subject to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations,
the Company will in appropriate circumstances arrange for its
shareholding in Xiamen International Bank to be gradually
reduced in the future, with a view that the Company will
eventually completely exit its shareholding in Xiamen
International Bank. However, the timing, manner and terms of
any such reduction have not yet been determined.

Having investments as its foundation, the Company will closely
monitor the impact of the restructuring of Xiamen International
Bank on the Group. In grasping the opportunities arising from
the macro economic policies, the Group will give priority to the
factor of investment value. It will actively seek attractive
investment opportunities while avoiding unnecessary risks so
as to lay down a solid foundation for the Group’s long term
development and will strive for reasonable return to the
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our friends for their support, and
to the management and all our staff for their dedicated services
and contribution.

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2011
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Weng Ruo Tong, aged 56, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since April 2009, and served
as Vice Chairman of the Company since then until 30th June
2009. He has been subsequently re-designated as Chairman of
the Company since 1st July 2009. Mr Weng is a university
graduate and has been engaged in industrial investment,
infrastructure construction and development, capital and
corporate management for a substantial period of time.He has
extensive experience in investments, financing, infrastructure
construction and development, and corporate management.He
had previously assumed the positions of Vice Director of the
Forestry Department of Fujian Province, General Manager of
Fujian Forestry Company, General Manager of Fujian Investment
and Development Corporation. He is currently the Chairman of
both Xiamen International Bank and Fujian Investment and
Development Holdings Corporation, a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

Mr Wang Hui Jin, aged 48, acted as a Non-executive Director of
the Company from October 2005 to 22nd April 2009. He was re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company on 23rd
April 2009, and has been appointed as Vice Chairman of the
Company since Tst July 2009. Mr Wang is a university graduate
and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He is a Senior
Accountant in Mainland China.He has spent a substantial period
of time in corporate management and has extensive experience
in corporate, financial and capital management. He had
previously assumed the positions of Deputy and Section Head
of the Finance Department of Fuzhou Medical Centre in Fujian
Province, General Manager of Fuzhou Medical Centre in Fujian
Province, Vice Chairman and General Manager of Fuzhou Tong
Chun Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, Chairman of Fuzhou
Chang Chun Pharmaceutical Company and Chief Accountant of
Fujian Investment Development Company. He had also served
as Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of CNOOC Fujian Gas
Ltd.and CNOOC Fujian Gas Power Ltd.He acted as Vice President
and the Chief Accountant of Fujian Investment & Enterprise
Holdings Corporation from September 2005 to April 2009.He is
currently the General Manager of Fujian Investment and
Development Holdings Corporation, and a Director and the
Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which are
substantial shareholders of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Zhu Xue Lun, aged 59, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2003. Mr Zhu is a university
graduate and an Engineer in Mainland China. He has spent a
long time in corporate management and has extensive
experience in corporate management, property management,
investment and capital management. He has previously
assumed the positions of Director of Taining Light Industry
Bureau in Fujian Province, Head of Taining County, General
Manager of Huafu Real Estate Company in Fujian Province.He is
currently a Vice Chairman of Xiamen International Bank. He is
also a Vice President of Fujian Investment and Development
Holdings Corporation and a Director of Vigour Fine Company
Limited, both of which are substantial shareholders of the
Company.

Mr Li Jin Hua, aged 48, acted as a Non-executive Director of the
Company from April to 12th August 2009, and has been re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company following
his appointment as Deputy General Manager of the Company
on 13th August 2009. He has subsequently been appointed as
the General Manager of the Company since 16th June 2010. Mr
Li is a university graduate and holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration. He is a Senior Economist and Senior
Engineer in Mainland China, and has been engaged in industrial
investment, project development and corporate management
for a substantial period of time. He has extensive experience in
corporate management and investment, development and
construction.He has previously assumed the positions of Deputy
General Manager of Fujian Raw Materials United Development
Company, General Manager of Zhong Min Leasing Company,
General Manager of Fujian Hongfa Economic Development
Company, Deputy General Manager of CNOOC Fujian Gas Power
Co., Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of the Planning and
Development Department and General Manager of the Gas
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Corporation.
He is currently a director of Xiamen International Bank and also
the Chairman of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, Minxin
(Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd. and Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd. He is also a Director of both Vigour Fine
Company Limited and Samba Limited, both of which are
substantial shareholders of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 59, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 1998. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is currently an
Executive Director and General Manager of Luso International
Banking Limited in Macao, and a Vice President of Xiamen
International Bank.He is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
and has over 30 years’ extensive experience in banking and
finance.He is also a member of Beijing Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Director
of the Macao Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman of the
Executive Board of the Macao Institute of Financial Services and
a Vice Chairman of the Macao Chinese Enterprises Association.
Mr Ip has a Master of Science Degree in Corporate Governance
and Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, aged 70, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since May
1999.He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practised for over 20 years. He is currently a non-executive
director to a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 63, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2004. He is a member of both the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company.He is a practising
solicitor and senior partner of Tang and So, Solicitors and
Notaries. Mr So is the holder of Bachelor of Laws Degree from
the University of London, Master of Laws Degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and The People’s University of China,
and Doctor of Laws Degree from Peking University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Cai Xiao Hong, aged 56, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 1995. She holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of California, Los
Angeles and has previously worked for various large companies.
She has over 20 years’ extensive experience in financial and
investment management. She is currently a Director of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd.

Mr Lin Zhu Fu, aged 47, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in September 2006. Mr Lin graduated from the Fujian
College of Engineering in Architecture and Beijing Jiaotong
University in Law. He is an Engineer and Senior Corporate
Controller in Mainland China and has 27 years’ experience in real
estate development, construction, investment management and
corporate management. He is currently a Director and General
Manager of both Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development Co.,
Ltd. and Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd.

Mr Chen Sheng Jie, aged 44, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in August 2010. Mr Chen graduated from
Tongji University in Industrial Management Engineering in
Economic Management Department. He is an Engineer in
Mainland China and has worked and studied at Mercedes-Benz
Company in Germany. He has extensive experience in corporate
development research, investments evaluation, real estate and
other assets valuation.He is currently a Director of both Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd. He is also a Director of Samba Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 40, joined the Company in April 2000.
He was appointed as the Deputy Financial Controller of the
Company in July 2004 and was promoted to Financial Controller
in January 2008. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before
joining the Company, he has worked for various listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has 13 years of extensive experience in
accounting and financial management. He is currently the Chief
Representative of the Fuzhou Representative Office of the
Company, a Director of Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd.and
a Director and Financial Controller of Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd.

Mr Yu Rui Hui, aged 45, joined the Company in August 2009
and was appointed as Group Chief Auditor of the Company in
November 2010.Mr Yu has a Bachelor of Economics Degree from
The People’s University of China, and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Xiamen University.He is a Senior
Accountant in Mainland China and has over 23 years’ extensive
experience in financial management, investment management
and corporate management.

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong, aged 52, joined Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“MXIC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 1999 and has subsequently been appointed as
Chief Executive and Director of MXIC since October 1999 and
September 2003 respectively. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s Degree in Engineering (Civil & Structural
Engineering) from the Sheffield University of England. He has
acquired extensive experience from various multi-national
insurance and reinsurance companies for over 25 years.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

For the financial year ended 31st December 2010, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the
requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.1 in respect of the service terms of Non-
executive Directors, details of which are set out in this report.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
comprises a total of seven Directors, with four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
three Independent Non-executive Directors collectively possess
a wide range of expertise on accounting, financial management
and legal areas. The Directors’ biographical information is set
out on pages 16 to 18.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company. Accordingly, the Company is
of the view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board determines the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters such as annual budgets
and business plans, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to senior management
under the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited to present
any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such
meetings. All Directors have access to appropriate business
documents and information about the Company on a timely
basis. The Board and each Director has separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice
at the Company'’s expenses, if necessary. Drafts and final versions
of minutes are circulated to all the Directors for comments.The
Company held four full Board meetings in 2010 and the average
attendance rate was 94%. Individual attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings and the
Remuneration Committee meeting during 2010 is set out below:

HER E2RE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Exg BEREEE FMZEE®
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
BITES Executive Directors
SERLE (FE) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 4/4 — —
TewiE (5IEE) Mr Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman) 3/4 — —
THERE Mr Ding Shi Da 171 — —
(R=ZZE—ZF (Resigned on 1st May 2010)
AA—HEE
REMREE Mr Zhu Xue Lun 4/4 — —
TIRERE (HKHE) Mr Li Jin Hua (General Manager) 4/4 — —
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
LEBEMmEE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 4/4 2/2 11
(BRZEEXE) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
ERMBEE Mr Ip Kai Ming 4/4 2/2 11
(FHZEESFE) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
BAKLE Mr So Hop Shing 3/4 2/2 1/1
FHUTES Non-executive Director
SEFEE Mr Weng Jian Yu 2/2 — 11
(R=ZE—ZF (Resigned on 1st July 2010)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and
the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity of Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties regarding management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.One of the important roles
of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
Chairman has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the
agenda for each Board meeting to the General Manager and
the Company Secretary. Senior management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of
the General Manager of the Company. The General Manager,
working with the Executive Committee and supported by other
management, is responsible for managing the businesses of the
Group, including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors in 2010.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Since the full Board is involved in the appointment of new
Directors, the Company has not established a Nomination
Committee. The Board will take into consideration criteria such
as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering new director appointments.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by Code Provision A.4.1;
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Articles of Association of the Company requires every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term or
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive Directors
of the Board, namely Mr Weng Ruo Tong, Mr Wang Hui Jin and
Mr Zhu Xue Lun.These members meet frequently as and when
necessary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Sze Robert Tsai To who
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practiced for over 20 years. It is responsible for the
appointment of external auditor, reviewing the Group’s financial
information and providing oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting and internal control system. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior to
recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control
matters and to perform such duties it has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s external and internal auditors.

In 2010, the Audit Committee held two meetings with the
attendance rate of 100%. At the meetings, it reviewed the final
results for the year ended 31st December 2009 and the interim
accounts for the six months ended 30th June 2010 respectively
with the external auditor; and also the activities of the Group’s
internal audit function and its findings and recommendations
as laid down in the internal audit reports. In addition, it has
reviewed the 2010 annual audit plan, and has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.This Committee is chaired
by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive Director.
The other members are Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, Mr So Hop Shing,
Mr Li Jin Hua and Mr Chan Kwong Yu.

During 2010, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the fees
of the Directors, the payment of bonus to the management staff,
and also the Company’s proposed salary adjustments to its
employees. |t also reviewed the Company’s mandatory provident
fund scheme and the proposed amendments thereto. One
meeting was held in 2010 with the attendance rate of 100%.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the Board. It has unrestricted access to review
all aspects of the Group’s activities and internal controls. It also
conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by the
Audit Committee or management.The Audit committee has free
and direct access to the Head of the Internal Audit Department
without reference to the Chairman or Management.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

In 2010, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the Group’s
internal control system.The annual review was coordinated by
the Group’s Internal Audit Department, which, after senior
management and each business and operational unit had
performed their self-assessment, has carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the review
process and results. The results of the 2010 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements for each financial period with a view to
ensuring such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. The Company'’s financial statements are prepared in
accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.The Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December 2010, the fees paid or payable
to the external auditor for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements issued by the
Company),and tax and consultancy services were HK$2,373,000,
HK$360,000 and HK$120,000 respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIESTRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than that required by the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they complied with the
code of conduct for transactions in the Company’s securities
throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2010
are set out on page 35.

The Directors have resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
17th June 2011 the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK cents
per ordinary share totaling HK$13,782,860 for the year ended
31st December 2010 (2009: final dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$13,782,860).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 40 and in Note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are
set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTSHELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group are
set out on pages 191 to 192.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December 2010,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance,amounted to HK$40,167,000 (2009: HK$33,349,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors serving during the year and at the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with articles 94 and 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs Zhu Xue Lun, Sze Robert Tsai To and Ip
Kai Ming will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

At 31st December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) were as follows:

RAEAREBROZHR
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company

BAKKRBES
EEME BEROEE Approximate
BEEnR Nature of Number of percentage of
Name of Director interests shares held shareholding

E R & A #E 2
Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%
B EXFIEEIN RZE—ZEF+ A= Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2010, none of the

T— B ARAEZFRITRAEZMEEARR
Al AR AAEROER (K75 LS 5= XV
ERFTHE R E ) MR D - ABRARR I HES T T
BEAAREESMEERPIEI521EETH
FHRERMACHRIRIFEETIAME RN
RAINBRZ I ERIORE  MARAZE
SR FZBB8EIA T 2 FRRFRTR
ESBEAENARBARRNESFLDIT
EAFHER

Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code; and none of the Directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO recorded that, as at 31st December 2010, the
following corporations had interests (as defined in the SFO) in

the Company:

BHFERBE DL
BERGHE Approximate
NCIECE Bt &t Number of percentage of
Name of Corporation Notes shares held shareholding
Samba Limited (“Samba”) 144,885,000 31.54%
Papilio Inc. (“Papilio ) 1 169,125,000 36.81%
EfEEEERRAR ([EFIEHE])
Xiamen C&D Corporation Limited (“Xiamen C&D ") 2 169,125,000 36.81%
SEEAERRAR(TERED
Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine”) 3 191,340,600 41.64%
BEAREFAEEEAREEAR([BEREME])
Fujian Investment and Development Holdings
Corporation (“FIDHC") 4 191,340,600 41.64%

Hiat -

1. PapiliokfBSambalR R K& H) =5 2 — sk A
FIRERE - WIR AR SambaiA AN A BT
144,885,000% 1% 17 H#E 2= © PapilioJF B # 7
B AKX 724,240,0000% f5 15 -

2. [EFIEE APapilioM LR E - WE AEA
Papilio M AR A B PAFFEI IR D #E 75 o

3. HfEFEASambalE AN =52 —skA
WERE - R BT A Sambal AN A A AT
144,885,000/ [t K1z - EENEERAR
7K/ F46,455,6000% X7 o

4. WEREFESEEMNZERR  WRSHE
BEERARFMTORMDER -

TR EEEEARNRRERR TR - R
“E-ZEF+-A=+—H  KRAEEH
MHAEEDIZE33615 MR E 2 B it ir & F
ﬁj/ﬂ(% ﬁaﬁ? °©
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Notes:

Papilio held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba. Papilio also
directly held 24,240,000 shares of the Company.

Xiamen C&D was the controlling shareholder of Papilio and was
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which
Papilio had an interest.

Vigour Fine held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.Vigour Fine
also directly held 46,455,600 shares of the Company.

FIDHC was the controlling shareholder of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which
Vigour Fine had an interest.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the

ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31st December 2010, no

short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company renewed the annual management
agreement with Vigour Fine, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereby Vigour Fine provides management services
to the Company which include the provision of directors to the
board of directors of the Company. A management fee of
HK$1,880,000 has been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Messrs Wang Hui Jin, Zhu Xue Lun and Li Jin Hua have interest
in the above transaction as directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILSOF DIRECTORSAND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Company’s Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 16 to 20.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less
than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
at 31st December 2010 are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2010, which are not
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as connected
transactions, are disclosed in Notes 18, 19,38(a), 38(b) and 38(e)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in
Notes 9,38(c) and 38(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are disclosed in
Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 29th March 2011
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Min
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 190, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2010,and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants,and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2010 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th March 2011
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B Z22010F12A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2010
2010 2009
TRE B¥T T BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS’000
B Turnover 5 80,195 90,825
L ONCE: Total revenues 5 80,024 80,408
Hhlas — 558 Other gains — net 6 19,124 12,049
EEIWAME Total operating income 99,148 92,457
R ERELSLNEEEFEE  Netinsurance claims incurred and
EkAeEA commission expenses incurred on
insurance business 7 (43,336) (55,770)
B IR Staff costs (28,065) (29,559)
e Depreciation (1,367) (1,878)
AtHESREERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
E5 18 financial assets 20(b) = (28)
HEh &R Other operating expenses (19,867) (17,441)
EHERT B Total operating expenses (92,635) (104,676)
BERA S (EE) Operating profit/(loss) 8 6,513 (12,219)
ELEZD N Finance costs 9 (792) (2,477)
ER R EEESR Share of results of jointly controlled
entities 18(a) 233,616 185,873
b N e Share of results of associates 19(b) 12,028 5,657
BRF B % A Profit before taxation 251,365 176,834
P15 8 3 Income tax expense 11 (10,022) (3,946)
REEZER Profit for the year 12 241,343 172,888
B’E Dividend
— RHEKRE — Final dividend 13 13,783 13,783
Al B
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
— EBEAXR#E — Basic and diluted 14 52.53 37.63
BRRE Dividend per share

— RERE — Final dividend 3 3
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For the year ended 31st December 2010

2010
BEFT
HKs’000
Profit for the year 241,343
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value changes (charged)/credited
to equity (168,327)
Share of changes in equity of jointly
controlled entities
Fair value changes credited to
equity 24,030
Disposal 2,974
Deferred income tax (8,830)
(150,153)
Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of
leasehold buildings transferred to
investment property —
Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities 48,155
Share of exchange translation reserve
released on disposal of non-current
assets held-for-sale by an
associate (6,396)
41,759
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (108,394)
Total comprehensive income for the year 132,949

2009

BETT
HK$'000

172,888

90,838

55,445
601
(11,187)

135,697

51

4,749

4,749

140,497

313,385
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As at 31st December 2010

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Jointly controlled entities
Associates

Available-for-sale financial assets
Reinsurance assets

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Properties under development for sale

Deferred acquisition costs

Insurance receivable

Reinsurance assets

Other debtors

Prepaid taxes

Other prepayment and deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Insurance contracts

Insurance payable

Other creditors and accruals

Deposits received on sale of properties
under development for sale

Deposits received on behalf of
an associate

Bank borrowings

Current income tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

i
Note

21
22
23
24

25

26
27

28
29
30

19(b)
31

12A31H
31st December
2010

BETT
HK$'000

21,644
95,695
1,649,907
11,654
488,313
1,665
475

2,269,353

595,439
15,756
11,163

1,063

875
5,975
4,975

5,947
120,503

761,696
48,895
4,374

72,808

72,194

132,444
139

330,854
430,842

2,700,195

12H31H
31st December
2009

(7] Restated)
(517 Note 2.2)
BEFT
HK$'000

22,892
98,281
1,367,863
44,735
656,640
1,903
658

2,192,972

432,653
18,346
14,207

2,633
1,879

3,801

2,605
365,340

841,464
55,960

7,562
45,217

125,172
109,710

358
343,979
497,485

2,690,457

1H1H

1st January
2009

(E7] Restated)
(37 Note 2.2)
BETT
HK$'000

24,407
86,713
1,143,062
36,841
576,576
1,959

673

1,870,231

328,440
15,781
15,858

2,933
1,347

11,896

1,725
261,309

639,289
52,852

9,772
30,036

89,590
109

182,359
456,930

2,327,161
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As at 31st December 2010

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Insurance contracts
Deferred income tax liabilities

Net assets

Share capital
Other reserves
Retained profits

Proposed dividend

Others

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Weng Ruo Tong
Director

Li Jin Hua
Director

Fig 3
Note

31
28
32

33(a)

B {= £ E % R 2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

12A31H
31st December
2010

BETT
HK$'000

15,262
18,211

33,473

2,666,722

459,429
1,761,357

13,783
432,153

2,666,722

12A31H
31st December
2009

(Z7]| Restated)
(3% Note 2.2)
BB
HKS'000

113,551
18,306
10,570

142,427

2,548,030

459,429
1,728,894

13,783
345,924

2,548,030

1A1H

1st January
2009

(Z7| Restated)
(772 Note 2.2)
EETT
HKS000

53,946
17,832
7,201

78,979

2,248,182

459,429
1,562,840

13,783
212,130

2,248,182
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2010F12A31H#&ZE As at 31st December 2010
12A31H 12A31H 1H1H
31st December  31st December 1st January
2010 2009 2009
(Z7%1) Restated) (2% Restated)
(5112 Note 2.2) (52 Note 2.2)
g BETF T BETT BETFT
Note HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME  KERRE Property, plant and equipment 15 4,757 4,942 5,237
KEYE Investment properties 16 58,021 44,950 38,713
Lil=NS Subsidiaries 17 478,832 480,839 487,011
HEE T Jointly controlled entities 18 205,800 205,800 205,800
Bana Associates 19 10,746 10,746 =
IHEEEREE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 488,313 656,640 576,576
1,246,469 1,403,917 1,313,337
REBEE Current assets
H it YR Other debtors 2 61 95
BARREE Prepayment and deposits 697 836 1,040
BOFEEBREFE  Financial assets at fair value through
MERMEE profit or loss 26 207 13 222
Re RRTEF Cash and bank balances 27 34,623 184,350 170,529
35,529 185,360 171,886
RBEE Current liabilities
MBS MES BEA  Other creditors and accruals 9,053 9,233 25,220
R—FEE AR WEILE  Deposits received on behalf of
an associate 19(b) — 125,172 —
RITEK Bank borrowings 31 15,000 53,946 89,590
24,053 188,351 114,810
REEE/ (B E2E Net current assets/(liabilities) 11,476 (2,991) 57,076
BEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,257,945 1,400,926 1,370,413
krBEE Non-current liabilities
RITEK Bank borrowings 31 — — 53,946
BRMEHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 32 17,903 10,423 7,201
17,903 10,423 61,147
EEFE Net assets 1,240,042 1,390,503 1,309,266
[E Share capital 33(a) 459,429 459,429 459,429
HitigE ¢ Other reserves 33(b) 684,001 852,328 761,518
REBEF Retained profits
BER S Proposed dividend 13,783 13,783 13,783
Hity Others 82,829 64,963 74,536
B Total equity 1,240,042 1,390,503 1,309,266
SEE Weng Ruo Tong
E Director
ZiREE Li Jin Hua

BEE Director
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20091718 At Tst January 2009
AEF2ANERE Total comprehensive income
for the year
& Dividend
EE-FHENAL Share of movement of reserves
fE2EY of an associate
EL Transfers
20095128318 % At 315t December 2009 and
01051718 1st January 2010
FER2ENELE Total comprehensive income
for the year
k& Dividend

ARBHEREMES

Tt

o
oiF |
|
I
= D1
B B
i
pe=li]

| 5
58 EE SN X BE EE
LS

2010£128318

Capitalisation issue by jointly
controlled entities

Share of movement of reserves
for partial disposal of a
subsidiary by a jointly
controlled entity

Reserves released on disposal
of non-current assets
held-for-sale by
an associate

Transfers

At 315t December 2010

B {= £ E % R 2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

For the year ended 31st December 2010

k&
Share
capital

ERFL
HKS'000

459,429

459,429

459,429

RHER
Share
premium

ERFR
HK$ 000

384,620

384,620

384,620

B4R
it
Capital

redemption
reserve

b tavs
HK$ 000

47,086

47,086

47,086

HE
fifie
Statutory
reserve

b Ay
HK$ 000

149,230

246
2,549

152,025

(632)
87,688

239,081

Hftif &S Other reserves
HERE
REER Efifife
54 EX  [BE  Leasehold
BEE  EHEL Investment buildings
General Capital revaluation revaluation
feserve  reserve  reserve  reserve

ENFL  ERTR ERTR ERTR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

20418 215,490 406,687 =

- — 135,697 51
22,762 — — —
243,180 215,490 542,384 51
- - (150,153) -
(263,679) 266,038 - -
- - -

- 2,931 - -
48,985 - - -
28,486 483,985 392,231 51

AERE
fEe
Exchange
translation
reserve

ERTL
HK$'000

139,309

4,749

144,058

0,759

185,817

ag
Total

ERTL
HK$'000

1,562,840

140497

246
25311

1,728,894

(108,394)

2,359

(474)

2,299
136,673

1,761,357

REER
Retained
profits

ERFR
HK$'000

25913

172,888
(13,783)

(25311)

359,707

21,383
(13,783)

(2,359)

(2,299)
(136,673)

445,936

RRRi
8%
Total
equity

ERFL
HK$ 000

2,248,182

313,385
(13,783)

26

2,548,030

132,949
(13,783)

(474)

2,666,722
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For the year ended 31st December 2010

Net cash outflow from operations

Interest income from bank deposits
received

Interest paid

Tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating
activities

Investing activities

Dividend received from an associate

Dividend received from a jointly
controlled entity

Deposit refunded for disposal of
non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale

Loan repaid by associates

Distribution in specie upon dissolution
of an associate

Placement of bank deposits pursuant
to insurance regulatory
requirements

Placement of bank deposits with
original maturity over three
months

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Sales of property, plant and equipment

Sale of investment property

Net cash inflow from investing
activities

Net cash outflow before financing

2010

T BETF T
Note HK$’000

37 (64,982)
2,429

(10,794)
(2,415)

(75,762)

19,863

4,800

19,337

(701)

(25,600)
(75)

10
20,782

38,419

(37,343)

2009
(E 7] Restated)

BT
HK$'000

(86,806)
2,045

(6,747)
(313)

(91,821)

7,320

9,200

(12,142)

1,375

175

(1,444)

(322)
24

4,186

(87,635)
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For the year ended 31st December 2010

Financing
Bank loans obtained
Bank loans repaid

Short-term advance obtained from
a substantial shareholder
Short-term advance repaid to
a substantial shareholder
Placement of restricted deposits
Withdrawal/(placement) of pledged

deposits
Dividend paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

financing

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange rates

changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at 31st December

Analysis of the balances of cash and

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant

to insurance regulatory

requirements
Restricted bank balances
Pledged bank balances

Bank deposits with original

maturity over three
months
Deposits received

B {= £ E % R 2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

i
Note

27

27
27
27

19(b)

2010

BETT
HK$’000

14,776
(112,975)

46,120

(46,120)
(858)

8,726

(13,783)

(104,114)

(141,457)

211,357

3,359

73,259

120,503

(20,786)
(858)

(25,600)

73,259

2009
(E 7] Restated)

B TT
HK$'000

168,715
(90,000)

(63)

(13,783)

64,869

(22,766)

234,005

118

211,357

365,340

(20,085)

(8,726)

(125,172)

211,357
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Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in banking investment,
insurance, property development and investment,
strategic investment, industrial instrument manufacturing
and toll road investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong.The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong.The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th March
2011.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collectively refer
to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
have been aligned with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— available-for-sale financial assets

— financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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The following new standards and amendments to
standards issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to the
operations of the Group and are mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning on 1st January 2010
have been adopted.

— HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” requires changes in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary that do not result
in changes of control to be accounted for within
equity, with no goodwill or gain/loss recognised.The
revised standard also specifies that when control is
lost, any remaining interest in that subsidiary is re-
measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement. The revised
standard has also resulted in the renaming of
“minority interests”as “non-controlling interests”This
revised standard has been applied prospectively to
transactions in current or future periods and
therefore previous periods have not been restated.
The adoption of this revised standard did not have
any financial impact on the Group.

—  Amendments to HKAS 28“Investments in Associates”
and amendments to HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint
Ventures” require that if significant influence or joint
control in an investee is obtained, the interests held
immediately prior to obtaining such significant
influence or joint control will be treated as if disposed
of and reacquired at fair value on the date of
obtaining significant influence or joint control and a
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.
These amendments also require that if significant
influence or joint control is lost, the transaction will
be accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with any remaining interest being
recognised at fair value as if reacquired and a gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement.These
amendments have been applied prospectively to
transactions in current or future periods and
therefore previous periods have not been restated.
The adoption of these amendments did not have any
financial impact on the Group.
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HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations” has
introduced a number of changes to the accounting
for business combinations, including the
requirement that where a business combination is
achieved in stages, the interests in the investee held
immediately prior to obtaining control will be treated
as if disposed of and reacquired at fair value on the
date of obtaining control, with any resulting gain or
loss recognised in the income statement. All
payments to purchase a business are to be recorded
at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
consideration classified as liabilities subsequently re-
measured through the income statement if those
subsequent changes are unrelated to facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
(rather than by adjusting goodwill). The subsequent
recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of the
accumulated tax losses and other temporary
deductible differences of the investee that failed to
meet the recognition criteria at the date of
acquisition will be recognised in the income
statement (rather than by adjusting goodwill). All
acquisition-related transaction costs will no longer
be capitalised as part of the costs of the acquisition
but will be expensed as incurred. The revised
standard also introduces an option to measure non-
controlling interests at fair value. This revised
standard has been applied prospectively to
transactions in current or future periods and
therefore previous periods have not been restated.
The adoption of this revised standard did not have
any financial impact on the Group.
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The improvements to HKFRSs 2009 consist of further
amendments to existing standards, including an
amendment to HKAS 17 “Leases” The amendment to
HKAS 17 requires the land element of a property
lease to be classified as a finance lease rather than
an operating lease if it transfers substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Before the amendment,
HKAS 17 stated that the land element of a property
lease would normally be classified as an operating
lease unless title to the land was expected to pass to
the lessee at the end of the lease term.On adoption
of the amendment, the Group has assessed its leases
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Where the
present value of the minimum lease payments (the
transaction price) of the land element held by the
Group amounted to substantially all of the fair value
of the land element as if it was freehold, the Group
has reclassified the land use rights held for own use
from operating leases to finance leases and stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation.Land use right
in Mainland China which is held for development and
subsequent sale meets the definition of both
inventories under HKAS 2“Inventories”and leasehold
land under HKAS 17 “Leases” During the year, the
Group changed its accounting policy from lease
model to inventory model for land use right which
is held for development and subsequent sale, which
is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.The revised treatment reflects management’s
intention regarding the use of land use right and
results in a presentation consistent with the industry
practices.The change of accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively to unexpired leases at the
date of adoption of the changed accounting policy
on the basis of information existing at the inception
of the leases.The change of accounting policy does
not apply to the leasehold land and land use right
disposed of by the Group in prior years.The effect of
the adoption of the aforementioned amendment
and change of accounting policy on these
consolidated financial statements is detailed as
below:
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128318 124318
31st December 31st December
2010 2009
E#/ (P LA/ (THK)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
BT BB T
HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17,020 17,345
Leasehold land and land use rights (17,020) (17,345)

Current assets

Land use rights (331,140) (324,882)
Properties under development for sale 331,140 324,882

1A1H

1st January
2009

£/ (FB)
Increase/
(decrease)
EETT
HKS'000

17,748
(17,748)

(328,440)
328,440
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— The Group also adopted a number of insignificant
amendments to standards and interpretations.These
amendments have had no material impact on these
consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
standards and amendments which are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31st December 2010 and which
have not been early adopted in these consolidated
financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial
statements:

— Amendments to Income Taxes
HKAS 12

— HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

— HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— HKICPA's improvements to HKFRSs 2010 published
in May 2010

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new HKFRSs is expected to be in
the period of initial application.So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
(together referred as the “Group”) and the Group's interests
in associates and jointly controlled entities made up to
31st December.

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Group. Control existed when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group.The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at fair value at the date of acquisition.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the changes in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in the income statement. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note
2.7(a)) or,when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity (Note 2.3(b)). In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income
statement or transferred directly to retained earnings
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-company transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-company transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
company transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity holders
of the Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes
2.17 or 2.18 depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)), unless the investments are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14).The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under
a contractual arrangement between the Group or the
Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.

Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless they are classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) (Note 2.14). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair
value of the investees’identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investments (if any). Thereafter, the investments are
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investees’ net assets and any impairment
losses on goodwill relating to the investments (Notes 2.4
and 2.9(b)). The consolidated income statement includes
the acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses on goodwill for the year, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The accounting policies of
investees have been aligned, where necessary, in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest in an associate or a jointly controlled entity
is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the investees, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a jointly controlled entity,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.7(a)) or,
where appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that investee are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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If the ownership interest in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is reduced but significant influence or
joint control is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in associates and jointly controlled entities
are stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)),
unless they are classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14).
The results of associates and jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2.9(b)).
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On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the gains or losses on disposal.

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gain/loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. As
at the reporting dates, the Group did not have any cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,
plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with that asset will flow to the Group and the
cost of that asset can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in the consolidated income statement on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:
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Leasehold land and
land use rights held
for own use

Buildings held for own use
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unexpired term of the
lease and 30 years

Computer equipment 20% - 50%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20%

office equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9(b)).

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation or both,and are not occupied by the companies
within the Group.They comprise land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-by-
property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.
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Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices and adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property,
or for which the market has become less active, continues
to be measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “Other gains — net’.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Group recognises financial assets on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,in case
of financial assets not held at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the income statement immediately.

(i) Atfairvalue through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets held for trading are financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial assets
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;



(i) BAFEEBRZIKE)

— RAEBEBARIETA MR
BARITE T ATABENERA
HREEEHBER %

— BBRARTTEIAREREEAND
PR TELER o

EitBRBNeRmEERERRAFETD
fR - AP EEDREAELBENG
ERARTHMAKE —FBIA -1
HER - HEMGRIEFEEREEN
ERNEAHRIIAGSBaRT [Hi
Wit —FRIA - REBARAKNEE K
BRI R ERABRERA
MRS [ MR AL D -

EUBRNEER RIFIEEE XA
REBRAET_EARNEE - JISER
MBEE -

(i) EBEFREK

ERR Y ASBREE XA EENKE
REEGRTS ERENIITEERE
E - WFRBREAKBEERREB AR
HEE  EndRBMEZSEEXER
RREE -

ER R YR B RN SOAFT B K
AR EEE (WER) 5k GEE
2.9(a)(i)) °

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

(i) Atfairvalue through profit or loss (Continued)

— the asset contains an embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial assets is not prohibited.

Financial assets under this category are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains — net” in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal, the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value is included
in the consolidated income statement within “Other gains
— net”in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “Other revenues” when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they
are either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within twelve months from the reporting date.

(ii)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any
(Note 2.9(a)(i)).
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(i) Loans and receivables (Continued)

They are included in current assets except for those with
maturities greater than or are expected to be realised after
twelve months from the reporting date which are classified
as non-current assets.

(iii)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(ii)).

They are included in current assets except for those with
maturities greater than twelve months after the reporting
date which are classified as non-current assets.

(iv) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other three categories above.
They include financial assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to need for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.
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(iv) Available-for-sale (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value
except for investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(iii)). Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items such
as debt securities which are recognised in the income
statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the assets within
twelve months from the reporting date.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices (bid prices) at the reporting date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of
prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate
at the reporting date applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models
are used, inputs are based on market data at the reporting
date.

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for derivative
financial instruments which may qualify as eligible cash
flow hedges or fair value hedges.
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The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assets (a‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— the Group granting to the issuer or obligor, for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulty, a concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

—  observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial asset in the
group, including:
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— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
(i)  Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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(i) Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If a held-to-maturity financial asset
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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(iii)  Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the securities below their cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired.

If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on those financial assets
previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity securities are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. Furthermore, any further declines in
value after an impairment loss had been recognised in
income statement should be recognised immediately in
the income statement.
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The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is an indication that a non-financial asset is impaired.
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for a non-financial asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount
of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a
cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously recognised
impairment losses on other assets are reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of an asset,however not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any amortisation or depreciation), had
no impairment loss been recognised against the asset in
prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting” in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (Notes 2.9(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period.This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10%
more than the benefits payable if the insured event did
not occur.
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Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group are
casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of causing harm to third parties
as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered
include both contractual and non-contractual events.The
typical protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual and
business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property
damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the
Group’s customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake
commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the
inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).
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Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to
income statement as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders. They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the reporting
date even if they have not yet been reported to the Group.
The Group does not discount its liabilities for unpaid
claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the
input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Group and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost
of more complex claims that may be affected by external
factors (such as court decisions).

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with
and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life
of the contracts as premium is earned.

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to income
statement initially by writing off DAC and subsequently
by establishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC
written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be
reinstated.
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Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts in Note
2.10 are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts
that do not meet these classification requirements are
classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered
into by the Group under which the contract holder is
another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included as
“Insurance contracts” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising
under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities
are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense over the terms of
reinsurance contracts and are included as “Insurance
payable” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment
on a regular basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income
statement.The Group gathers the objective evidence that
a reinsurance asset is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted for
loans and receivables as described in Note 2.9(a)(i).
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Receivables and payables are recognised when due.These
include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
insurance receivable to its recoverable amount and
recognises that impairment loss in the income statement.
The Group gathers the objective evidence that an
insurance receivable is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted for
loans and receivables as described in Note 2.9(a)(i).

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell (usually
damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (salvage).
The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs (subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when the
liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the
amount that can be recovered from the action against the
liable third party.
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All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual ownership right existed.The Group acquired the
rights to use certain land in Mainland China which are held
for development for sale.The premiums paid for those land
use rights are classified as inventories in accordance with
HKAS 2 “Inventories” and measured at lower of cost and
net realisable value. Land use rights are transferred to
properties under development for sale upon
commencement of development.

Properties under development for sale is included as
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less estimated variable
selling expenses and anticipated costs to completion, or
by management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

Development costs of properties comprise land use rights,
construction costs, capitalised finance costs and
professional fees incurred during the development period
of a normal operating cycle. On completion, the
development costs of properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if the carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through a
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition.
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Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification.Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale,
orisincluded in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for sale,
or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, are no longer met the recognition criteria stated
above, the Group measures that asset at the lower of its
carrying amount before that asset was classified as held
for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had that
asset not been classified as held for sale,and its recoverable
amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell.
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Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with original maturity of three months or less from the date
of investment less bank overdrafts.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2.19, creditors and payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee
was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liabilities
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income
statement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of economic
benefits occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the
inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow of
economic benefits with respect to any one item included
in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at closing exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges. As at the reporting date, the Group
did not have any cash flow hedges or net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities, such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve.
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The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities items in their statement of
financial position are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates, unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing at the
transaction dates.In such case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions; and

— allresulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange translation reserve.When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to the income statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward.The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity.
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Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Revenue is recognised on the following basis provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount can be measured reliably:

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal installments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Management fees are recognised upon the provision of
services.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.
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Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue
proportionally over the period of coverage.The portion of
premium received on in-force contracts that relates to
unexpired risks at the reporting date is reported as the
unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commission.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (including those for leasehold land) net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.
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Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.When payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. These pension plans are defined
contribution schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior periods.

The Group'’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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A jointly controlled entity of the Group operates an equity
appreciation right plan. According to the plan, the right
can be exercised by eligible employees when services are
rendered and prescribed results are met. The fair value of
the services provided by employees in exchange of the
equity appreciation right granted is recognised as an
expense.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after reporting date are discounted to
present value.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in these consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products or services, the
nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved for distribution.

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if:

(a)

(d)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control or joint control
the Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence;

the party is an associate or a joint venture of the
Group;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s significant shareholders,
or a close family member of such an individual, or is
an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin (a) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes of
them, either due to changes of management’s judgement
or the evolvement of the actual circumstances, would
cause the Group’s financial position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and that the
consolidated financial statements therefore present fairly
the Group’s financial position and results in all material
respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are
discussed below.

The best evidence of fair value of investment properties
held by the Group is current prices in an active market for
similar lease or other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices. As at 31st December 2010, the fair value of
the Group'’s investment properties was approximately
HK$95.7 million (Note 16).
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For casualty and property insurance contracts, estimates
have to be made for both the expected ultimate cost of
claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected
ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR")
at the reporting date. It may take a significant period of
time before the ultimate claims cost can be established
with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims
form the majority of the insurance liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position.The ultimate
cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range
of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such
as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that
past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate
claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average cost per
claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by
accident year, as well as by significant business lines and
claim types.Large claims are usually separately addressed,
either by being reserved at the face value if loss adjustor
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their
future development. The assumptions used are those
implicit in the historical claims development data on which
the projections are based. Additional qualitative
judgement is used to assess the extent to which past
trends may not apply in future (for example to reflect one-
off occurrence, changes in external or market factors such
as public attitudes of claiming, economic conditions, levels
of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well
as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions
and claims handling procedures), so as to arrive at the
estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the likely
outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account of all the uncertainties involved.
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The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain.Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.As at 31st December 2010, the Group had deferred
income tax liabilities of approximately HK$18.21 million
(Note 32). Should the actual applicable tax rate differ by
1%, the deferred income tax liabilities would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$0.75 million.

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”)

The Group’s major jointly controlled financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally engaged in the banking business
(Note 18).In preparing its statutory consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises (“PRC ASBE”"), certain critical
accounting estimates and judgement have been applied
as described below:

—  Fairvalue of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by XIB Group using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models.To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however areas
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities
and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
reported fair value of financial instruments.
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(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”) (Continued)

— Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
regularly, and would further assess impairment loss when
there are indications of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from an individual loan, observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group (e.g., payment delinquency
or default), or national or local economic conditions that
correlated with defaults on assets in the group. The
individual impairment loss is based upon management’s
best estimate of the present value of cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original
effective interest rate.When assessing the impairment loss
of aloan portfolio under the collective evaluation method,
management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience, which subjects to adjustments according to
observable data to reflect the current economic
conditions, for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows.The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.



() EFPIEIERERTT R A HTE 27l ([EFT
B iRiTEE]) (&)

— RAOKERENGE

M2010F12H31H - EFfTREERRITSEE
RE—BIFLTRERE  ZBRER
BHRECESHEARKATE - BE
RASEHI R EHETE23b)SE
BOR—8  AEBEZREB L EETE
B ET (e B P BIPR SR 1T S E 5 A M AR AE IR
BEMAFE - WRARERE M BEHRERAA
NEBEEHTE °

GBI E A FEH B BT
FIER A TS BUAEL (E1E © RIZAER
BHRUEEEBALUITENSZR LT AT
TSR (Bl AR EHERER) k%
BHRNELUBER  TAEEERE
AATEMNEEERN  HRBEEHR
BRTHENEE AR ED AT 2E -
PREEHRORNE LM ARLERT
R BNALIE R - FA20105E12831H @ &
SEREZBERENATFERE GEAR
EFRIEFIEER) #)75¥610,7868 70 * BT
AEMEEK=EA - WERREZHE
BEEMBEERRNZS - MRBAIEA X
W% - AEEHRE SHFEE
GTNBELERIEARE) 55 RIR L, 15
N4 B 1938 T ©

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”) (Continued)

—  Valuation of long-term equity investments

As at 31st December 2010, an unlisted equity investment
held by XIB Group was measured at cost in accordance
with PRC ASBE. For the purpose of financial reporting of
the Group in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.3(b), the Group has appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of the equity
investment held by XIB Group and re-measured at fair
value in these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of the equity investment has been estimated
using a market comparison approach by the independent
professional valuer. Based on the market ratio (e.g., price/
earning and price/book ratios) of a number of listed
companies engaged in similar industries as the investee
and the investee’s historical financial information,
management of the Group makes estimates and
judgement on the appropriate adjustments required to
reflect the circumstances of the investee, including the
liquidity discount applicable to the shares of the investee
as compared to those of a listed company, for fair value
estimation purposes. As at 31st December 2010, the
Group’s attributable share of the fair value gain (after
deferred tax adjustment) arising from this investment,
which is accounted for in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, was approximately HK$107.86 million.
To the extent that the liquidity discount rate increases/
decreases by 1%, the Group’s investment revaluation
reserve (after deferred tax adjustment) will decrease/
increase by approximately HK$1.93 million respectively.
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(ii)  Min Faith Investments Limited and its subsidiaries
(“MFL Group”)

MFL Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and distribution of digital instruments and auto-
equipments, and investing in strategic investments for
income and capital appreciation purposes (Note 18). In
preparing its statutory consolidated financial statements
under HKFRSs, certain critical accounting estimates and
judgement have been applied as described below:

—  Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31st December 2010, MFL Group held less than 5%
equity interest in an unlisted company incorporated and
operated in Mainland China and measured the investment
at cost of approximately HK$11.91 million. According to
the Group’s preliminary assessment of the fair value of this
equity investment using different valuation techniques,
the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, hence this equity
investment is precluded from measuring at fair value.



AREBENE XD AR EZENYEE
% BRERRER  mHERER (BEEE
Rk - BRREREMNZXER) - FERR
ERBECRR - AEBAGARKER
ELERARE ARHEENBR K
REBFMEEELRARNITIE °

AREEMRE B R R 25 R 15
AT UREmEARERDHESH
2 NERSRENREQD®RNIT -
BERERES - AEENERARE
BEINU BTGB SRE
EREHANEETBERANEETNE
= .

EER(EER)KRERRMM &S
EARERREENREREEE - X
HERERAKKEE EFZRCHRM
AHE RAEERRERENIEF - ER
HemEEMEMABENMTE  A5H
TEREETAEREMAENRR

HEEAEEEARESEAR  Fit
AANEREERER  THEEERXE
BENERHENEBAERRS - Hf
EREGKEAEHEKERITHSE
BRERNBEEERE

AEEEI T -EARMBEFRG - B
R R DB AR - AER
EGBEERLVAMERR - BF LR
B o JEE AV E I ) B LA RECR BE TR AR AR
BIYNEGHE - RSEEAE RN
BEDT - ABEEEE N REMEHIR
i% o

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks including insurance risk, market risk
(including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group’s exposure to these risks, as well as its objectives,
policies and processes for managing and the methods
used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the Group
within a manageable risk level. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s performance.

The Board of Directors (“Board”), representing the interest
of shareholders, is the highest decision making authority
of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures for
evaluating and approving significant investment decisions.
Given the nature of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored by the Group
primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”) is responsible for managing
the Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed risk
management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board.The other members of the management team
assist the GM in fulfilling his responsibilities for the day-
to-day management of risks.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of Group’s organisation structure
that sets adequately clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the
business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties
throughout the organisation which helps to promote
appropriate internal control environment.
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The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.This
section summarises these risks and the way the Group
manages such risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual numbers and amounts of claims will vary
from year to year from the level established using statistical
techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(i) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors.The most significant are the increasing level
of awards for the damage suffered and the increase in
number of cases coming to court that were inactive or
latent for a long period of time. Estimated inflation is also
a significant factor due to the long period typically
required to settle these cases.
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(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right to
re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it can impose
deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claim.Insurance contracts also entitle the Group
to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation). Unless the legislation requires, the Group's
strategy limits the total exposure of any individual policy
to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group
should not suffer total net insurance losses more than the
prescribed amount. In addition to the overall reinsurance
program, additional reinsurance protection for any
individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net
of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:
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Gross
Hong Kong
Macao

Total insurance liabilities, gross

Net
Hong Kong
Macao

Total insurance liabilities, net

Gross
Hong Kong
Macao

Total insurance liabilities, gross

Net
Hong Kong
Macao

Total insurance liabilities, net

(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

"E
Motor

BETT
HKS'000

38,334
435

38,769
36,401
425

36,826

g
Motor

BB
HKS000

47,925
213

48,138
44,659
213

44,872

-RERER
General
liability

BETT
HK$'000

2,864
712

3,576

2,785

707

3,492
—RERER
General
liability

ERTT
HK$'000

2,662
412

3,074
2,560
410

2,970

2010
BORREE

Accident
and health

BBTT
HKS'000

16,614
474

17,088

16,613
434

17,047

2009

ENRER
Accident
and health

AR
HKS 000

18,061
490

18,551
18,008
426

18,434

Htt
Others

BRTT
HKS'000

482
4,242

4,724
174
3,890

4,064

i
Others

BEFT
HKS'000

878
3,625

4,503
212
3,242

3,454

am
Total

BETR
HKS'000

58,294
5,863

64,157

55,973
5,456

61,429

ks
Total

EETT
HKS000

69,526
4,740

74,266

65,439
4,291

69,730
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(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis.The Group is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract even if the
loss is discovered after the end of the contract term.As a
result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time
and a larger element of claims provision relates to incurred
but not reported claims. There are several variables that
affect the amounts and timing of cash flows from these
contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks by
individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these
contracts is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings and
rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur as
a result of the accident.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to
be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given
the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final outcome will prove to be different from the
original liability established.The liability for these contracts
comprises a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported
claims not yet paid and a provision for unexpired risks at
the reporting date.
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(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both
reported or not), the Group’s estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss
ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of
insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a
particular financial year in relation to such claims) and an
estimate based upon actual claims experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. In
estimating the amount of IBNR which makes reasonable
provisions for the claims and the unexpired risks, it is
necessary to project future claims cost and associated
claims expenses and simulate the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic forces
and may not be entirely appropriate for the types of
insurance business being analysed. It is certain that actual
future claims and claims expenses will not develop exactly
as projected and may vary significantly from the
projections.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims
not yet paid the Group considers any information available
from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling
claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.
Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or
projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on
the rest of the portfolio.
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(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to
estimate the required level of provisions.This provides a
greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected.The projections given by the
various methodologies also assist in estimating the range
of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.

(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to incorporate
the various assumptions made in order to estimate the
ultimate cost of claims.The choice of selected results for
each accident year of each class of business depends on
an assessment of the technique that has been most
appropriate to observed historical developments. In
certain instances, different techniques or combination of
techniques have been selected for individual accident year
or group of accident years within the same class of
business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s motor
insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method are
applied.
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(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions (Continued)

The paid and incurred loss development methods use
historical patterns of claims to project the ultimate cost of
the claims,and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.The
industry wide trends in the claims costs, direct and
reinsurance premium rates and underwriting profitability
for the motor insurance business in Hong Kong are also
considered in the ultimate claims liabilities estimation.The
estimation of the premium liabilities is made by reference
to the projected ultimate loss ratios, which is the estimated
ultimate claims liability divided by the earned premium.

For other classes of insurance portfolio of the Group, the
incurred loss development methods supplement with the
earned premium and average incurred loss year
development are used to project the estimated ultimate
loss ratios.

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested by
an analysis of sensitivity around several difference
scenarios.The change in the monetary awards granted for
bodily injury suffered and also the employers’ liability
claims is the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.
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(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables (Continued)

The Group believes that the liability for these claims carried
at the reporting date is adequate. However, an increase of
10% in the cost of these claims would require the
recognition of an additional loss of approximately HK$2.7
million (2009: approximately HK$3.1 million) net of
reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described above
does not take into account of changes in other variables,
as they are considered to be less material. Such an
assessment and the relative materiality of individual
variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top
half of the table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate
of total claims outstanding for each accident year has
changed at successive reporting dates.The bottom half of
the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount
appearing in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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(iv) HEE DI — 1R BB R A& (iv) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
R K (B) development tables (Continued)

RIGAEE — EE Insurance claims — gross

EHEE Accident year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 &% Total

EETT  EETT REETT E¥TT  EETT | BRFR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000 | HK$'000

b AR BB R Estimate of ultimate claims costs

REHFE atend of accident year 29,854 31,045 26,780 34,938 27,204

—F% one year later 17,114 20,980 17,412 23,839

—EH two years later 17,062 22,798 18,215

=F% three years later 15,330 22,720

M four years later 15,881
BHhT 2 R BE Current estimate of cumulative claims 15,881 22,720 18,215 23,839 27,204 | 107,859
Z5RAR Cumulative payment to date (14414 (21199)  (16344) (17522 (10920) |  (80,399)

1467 1,521 1,871 6,317 16,284 27,460

AEER Liabilities in respect of prior years 1,939

29,399
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(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims

development tables (Continued)

Insurance claims — net

2006 2007 2008 2009
BETT BETT AT AETrn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2440 25,560 23,143 31,190
16,276 20,327 16,592 21,954
16,116 22,101 16,919
14,383 21,967
14,734
14,734 21,967 16,919 21,954
(13,267) (20,4406) (15,061) (15,640)
1,467 1,521 1,858 6,314

2010

BETT
HKS'000

24,844

24,844
(10,406)

14,438

# %8 Total

ERFT
HK$000

100,418
(74,820)

25,598
1,554

27,152
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(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables (Continued)

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products that
have remained unchanged in recent years.

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from movements
in market rates and prices. The Group’s market risk arises
from trading position in the financial instruments taken
from proprietary trading which is subject to mark-to-
market valuation.The risk includes potential losses arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder’s value by maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market risk is
based on restricting individual operations to trading
within a list of permissible instruments authorised by the
Board to ensure all risks arising are thoroughly identified,
properly measured and adequately controlled.

(i) Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies.The Group
mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations denominated in various currencies, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”).
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(i) Currency risk (Continued)

In respect of receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of
entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollar, in
either Hong Kong dollar or the United States dollar. Given
this, management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group'’s
borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company'’s
exposure at the reporting date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which

EH

AfHHESREE

H Al & Y AR K

Be MR1TERF

H At A AR S B 5T &
R—BERRMERZES

The Group

Available-for-sale financial assets

Other debtors

Cash and bank balances

Other creditors and accruals

Deposits received on behalf of an associate

they relate:
2010 2009
AREFRT| ARKETT
RMB ‘000 RMB 000
414,000 576,000
1 2
9,057 119,476
(799) (810)
— (109,800)

422,259 584,868
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(i) EEEER(E

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

2010 2009

ARMF T ARETF T

RMB ‘000 RMB 000

PN The Company

At EemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 414,000 576,000
H A 8 U BR 5K Other debtors 1 1
B MIRITHEF Cash and bank balances 3,332 118,655
HEM MR R ERTE A Other creditors and accruals (799) (809)
R—KEE L QR WEIR & Deposits received on behalf of an associate = (109,800)
416,534 584,047

TRIWRAEBRAARIREZHBREE The following table indicates the approximate change in
R HIR SRR g B AR ERE R the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation (and
HALE RARRRIBRT RN (RIRE retained profits) and other components of equity in
i ) Ko i 2 ELA AR B BB 9 BE AR O K K057 response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign

E
=

exchange rates to which the Group and the Company have
significant exposure at the reporting date:
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The Group

Renminbi 5
(5

The Company

Renminbi 5
(5
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(i) Currency risk (Continued)

2010

HRBERHR Highih
RERNNYE ARBIHEE

Effect on Effect on

profit after other
taxation and components
retained profits of equity
BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

487 24,416

(487) (24,416)

149 24,416

(149) (24,416)

SR AR
R/ (F#)
Increase/
(decrease) in
foreign

exchange rate

Bt
%

(3)

5
(3)

The sensitivity analysis above

2009
HBHREETR HEREM

RERNNYE SAXFINTE
Effect on Effect on

profit after other
taxation and components
retained profits of equity
BETFT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

505 32,832

(505) (32,832)

459 32,832

(459) (32,832)

has been determined

assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had

occurred and had been applied to re-measure those

financial instruments held by each of the Group’s entities

which expose to currency risk at the reporting date, and

that all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained

constant.
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(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next reporting date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollar against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on profit after
taxation and equity of each of the Group’s entities
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate
ruling at the reporting date for presentation purposes.The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

(ii)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on investments
held by the Group classified on the consolidated statement
of financial position as available-for-sale financial assets
or as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's equity investments held for trading are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the index and the
Group’s liquidity needs. Investments held in the available-
for-sale portfolio comprise equity investments listed on
the Stock Exchange of Shanghai. The listed equity
investments have been chosen based on their long term
growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.
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LN
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EEEH
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The Group

Stock market index in
respect of listed
investments

Hang Seng Index

Shanghai Composite Index

The Company

Stock market index in
respect of listed
investments

Hang Seng Index

Shanghai Composite Index

HERREY
I#/ (TH)
Increase/
(decrease)

in the relevant
risk variance

B
%

(3)

(5)

(5)

(3)
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(i) Price risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s and the Company'’s profit after taxation (and
retained profits) and other components of equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in the relevant
stock market index for listed investments to which the
Group and the Company have significant exposure at the
reporting date:

2010 2009
HRB &R HERRR ABEREE  HERRENR Hgm it
REGIMYE 4ARBAMFE L7/ TR RREIDYE ERBHHYE

Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
BETFT BETT Bl BETFT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HKS'000

297 - 5 m —

(297) = (5 (111) —

- 24,628 5 - 9,850

= (24,628) (5) = (9,850)

10 - 5 16 —

(10) = (5) (16) =

- 24,628 5 - 9,850

- (24,628) (5) = (9,850)
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(i) Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock market
index had occurred and had been applied to the exposure
to equity price risk in existence at the reporting date. It is
also assumed that the fair values of the Group'’s and the
Company’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index, that none of the Group’s and the
Company’s available-for-sale investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remained constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over
the period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

(iii) ~ Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk
that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities mainly
comprise bank deposits and bank borrowings
denominated in floating rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short period and monitoring
the market interest rate movements so that the Group can
react accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.
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(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the
reporting date. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities
less interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for
short-term working capital purposes):

2010 2009
BERHE fRE(E ERA = REE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
E BT B EETT
% HK$'000 % HKS'000
rEE The Group
7Bl Variable rate
BILRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 1.8 15,000 1.9 53,946
ARBHRIER Renminbi bank borrowings 6.4 117,444 6.4 169,315
132,444 223,261
NG The Company
FEN % Variable rate
BILRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 1.8 15,000 1.9 53,946

720109128318 - A REEeE -3
TF100MEEE: - mATHE E &SR
N R ARB R ARR ZBREE R
I RARB m F R 18 hn49 75 ¥ 34
BT (20094 : 48988 L) °

At 31st December 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation and
retained profits by approximately HK$0.34 million (2009:
approximately HK$0.98 million).
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(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had occurred
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments held by the Group and the
Company at the reporting date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a
customer or counterparty will be unable to or unwilling
to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts due to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
insurance related receivables and other receivables.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by screening
the counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquiring
collateral from counterparties.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.The Group or the Company does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk other than those
provided in the normal course of business (Note 34).

Insurance receivable are required to meet the Group’s
established financial requirements and provide third party
guarantees to the Group when it considered necessary.



ERAEBERREBACEERBRNE —
SEIBR BN TR -

MR2010F 128310 » SRITETFED BUFIR
RIEERIFHE mEE -

MBETRERIEERBEUNEEES AN
RERSAREFEHAENER - EH
IR R B E Sk R E R B = R IR
BB ATERESREELE  X5Y
FREBTAEHNENETHRREEIRK
TRHRF B H AT -

AEBOHEATHREEERDELT
BREGHAERGE - BRAZEE
RENORS RS - BET2RANEE
B R BRI RIS R WRVEK
SREE | LB RE S RER G
PELHE -

AEBBE TN ZBUZEERARTREAE
BeERIE BRRSAEKIEHEK
BERBEEFRAERNBERREER -

TRINFREFAAEERARANE
BMEEMABRAHATRRDR (B
BAENNXR BT EAREEREAE
T2 R REFE 2 FE) FFE 2 RIra 0=
HE  WRAKBEARGABEERH
RIE &P BHIFE

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from insurance receivable
are set out in Note 23.

As at 31st December 2010, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either inability
to sell financial assets quickly at their fair value, a counter-
party failing on repayment of a contractual obligation or
an insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than
expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuéd)

4

PO - 7 2o S s
O B S B 285 o o 4 PR () 4  INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PR B R b R & () 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) W% ek (E) (d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
2010 2009
BHARR E-EE CLE e £-5%
ReiRaE F—FR FRER Renag E£—FR FLER
Total SRER (BEERME) Total YREX (BEERME)
fREfE contractual Withinone  In the second FEE contractual Withinone  In the second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor tofifth year Carrying  undiscounted year or to fifth year
amount cash flow on demand inclusive amount cash flow on demand inclusive
BETT BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
*5E The Group
EE Assets
BRREE Reinsurance assets 2,728 2,728 1,063 1,665 4,536 4,536 2633 1,903
£ Liabilities
REA#H Insurance contracts 64,157 64,157 48,895 15,262 74,266 74,266 55,960 18,306
RIBERH Insurance payable 4,374 4,374 4,374 = 7,562 7,562 7,562 =
EtENEHRETER  Other creditors and accruals 72,808 72,808 72,808 - 45217 45217 45217 =
R—BEDFANIUEE  Deposits received on behalf
of an associate - - - - 125172 125172 125,172 =
BOER Bank borrowings 132,444 136,334 136,334 = 223,261 238,164 120,914 117,250
273,783 271,673 262,411 15,262 475,478 490,381 354,825 135,556
NG| The Company
&fF Liabilities
EfENEHRESER  Other creditors and accruals 9,053 9,053 9,053 - 9233 9,233 9233 —
R—BEDFANIUES  Deposits received on behalf
of an associate — — — — 125,172 125172 125,172 —
BOER Bank borrowings 15,000 15,022 15,022 - 53,946 54,192 54,192 -
24,053 24,075 24,075 - 188,351 188,597 188,597 —

115
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The financial risks exposure and management objectives
and policies of the Group’s jointly controlled financial
institutions, XIB Group, are summarised as below:

(i)  Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of financial
risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk).
XIB Group continuously identifies, evaluates and monitors
these risks. XIB Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate
balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The Board of Directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”) provides
strategy for overall risk management. Its senior
management establishes related risk management
policies and procedures under the strategy approved by
the XIB Board, including written policies covering specific
areas, such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments.Those risk management policies and
procedures are enforced by various departments after XIB
Board’s approval.In addition, the internal audit department
is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and control environment.
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(i) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from
the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its
contractual obligations or commitments to XIB Group.
Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces in
its operations. Therefore, management of XIB Group
manages the exposure to credit risk carefully. Credit risk
of XIB Group arises principally from its activities relating
to loans and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and payment acceptance.

XIB Group has established a multi-level organisation for
credit risk management.The Risk Management Committee
controls overall credit risk and is responsible for
coordinating with Risk Management Department, Risk
Evaluation Department and Legal Affairs and Compliance
Department to implement measures for credit risk
management.The Approval Officers of XIB Group approve
the loans and investments within their authorisation limits
and such approval is confirmed by the Chief Approval
Officer. Loan and investment proposals that exceed the
authorisation limits of Approval Officers are submitted to
the President’s Office or the Board of Executive Directors
of XIB Group for approval after Credit Committee’s review.
XIB Group has also established Risk Control Departments
in its branches to implement credit risk management
under its own jurisdiction.
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(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

The credit approval policies and procedures of XIB Group
are standardised. Risk Management Department together
with other relevant departments review and update the
credit policies and procedures periodically. Credit rating,
credit measurement, economic capital, various post-
lending management, indicator control, collective
assessment, risk warning and risk reporting are measures
for managing credit risks.

(iii) ~ Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group is unable to obtain
funds at a reasonable cost when required to meet a
repayment obligation and fund its assets portfolio. The
liquidity management objective of XIB Group is to ensure
the availability of adequate funding to meet its needs to
fund deposit withdrawals and other liabilities as they fall
due, as well as being able to meet its obligations to fund
loan originations and commitments and to take advantage
of new investment opportunities.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee of XIB Group
establishes the strategy and policy of liquidity
management. The Financial Controller of XIB Group is
responsible for daily liquidity management, monitoring
and analysing the liquidity ratio continuously.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to assess
and monitor its liquidity risk. A daily, monthly and quarterly
liquidity reporting system has been set up to ensure that
its Assets and Liabilities Committee, senior management
and Risk Management Committee can review the liquidity
condition on a timely basis.
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(iv)  Market risk

XIB Group is exposed to market risk that may cause losses
to it as a result of adverse movements in market prices.
Market risk arises from open positions in the trading book
and banking book in interest rate, exchange rate, equities
and commodities. The trading book consists of financial
instruments and commodities that are free of any
restrictive covenants on their tradability and held with
trading intent, and in order to or for the purpose of
hedging market risk of the trading book.The banking book
consists of financial instruments not included in the
trading book (including those financial instruments
purchased with surplus funds and managed in the
investment book).

The XIB Board, the Risk Management Committee under XIB
Board and the senior management of XIB Group approve
the overall market risk policies and procedures. XIB Group
has established a market risk management team to
monitor its market risk exposure and report the risk
exposures and interest rate sensitivity to senior
management on a regular basis. The senior management
of XIB Group approves the limits over the foreign currency
exposures and the limits for the trading book in
accordance with market risk management policies
established by XIB Board.

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits and risk
limits to identify, monitor and control market risk. XIB
Group performs sensitivity analysis to assess the interest
rate risk and exchange rate risk of its trading book and
banking book.The sensitivity analysis provides guidance
to the adjustment of re-pricing and maturity structure of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. A reporting system
has been established by XIB Group to report the result of
the sensitivity analysis to the Risk Management Committee
for review regularly.
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(iv)  Market risk (Continued)

—  Currency risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business in RMB,
with other transactions denominated in foreign currencies,
therefore XIB Group is exposed to the fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial
position and cash flows. XIB Group manages its exposures
to currency exchange risk through management of its net
foreign currency position.

— Interest rate risk

Banking book interest rate risk is the risk that the banking
book assets, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and most
common interest rate risk, arises from the difference
between maturity terms (for fixed interest rates) or
between the re-pricing terms (for floating interest rates)
of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
commitments. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
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(iv)  Market risk (Continued)

— Interest rate risk (Continued)

XIB Group mainly manages its exposures to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing market
interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash flows. XIB
Group’s business in Mainland China operates under the
interest rate scheme regulated by the People’s Bank of
China. Based on experience, it is normal practice for the
interest rates of both interest-bearing assets and liabilities
to move in the same direction (but the extent of changes
is not necessarily the same). XIB Group controls its interest
rate risk primarily through controlling the distribution of
the maturity date or re-pricing date of loans and deposits
and the asset-liability re-pricing gap.

(v)  Capital management

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i) to
comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators
of the markets where the entities within XIB Group operate;
(i) to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored by
XIB Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”), for supervisory purposes. The
required information is filed with the CBRC on a quarterly
basis.
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings and advances divided by
total net assets. For this purpose the Group defines total
borrowings and advances as total bank borrowings and
short-term advances (if any) as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Total net assets comprise
all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

During 2010, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2009, was to maintain the gearing ratio within 25%.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holders of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31st December 2010 and
2009 were as follows:

2010 2009

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HKS’000

REE Total borrowings and advances 132,444 223,261
BERE Total net assets 2,666,722 2,548,030
EXREELE=E Gearing ratio 5.0% 8.8%
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The decrease in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from
the net decrease in bank loans outstanding at
31st December 2010 due to the repayment of bank loans
principal of HK$112.98 million and the drawdown of new
bank loan of HK$15 million during the year (Note 31).

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a
subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited (“MXIC"), should maintain at least HK$20 million
in its adjusted net assets calculated according to the
requirements set out in the Insurance Ordinance. In order
to fulfill these requirements, MXIC may adjust the dividend
paid to the Company or issue new shares to the Company.
If MXIC cannot maintain the capital requirements imposed,
the Commissioner of Insurance may place restrictions on
the operations of MXIC.

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement.The levels are
defined as follows:

— Level 1:fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

—  Level 2:fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data
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— Level 3: fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which significant inputs are not based
on observable market data

The table below analyses the financial instruments of the
Group and the Company carried at fair value, by valuation

method:
AEH NN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

YT | BETT | BETR| BETT
HK$’000 | HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

488,313 656,640 488,313 656,640

Listed equity securities
MR R 5 held for trading

5,947 2,605 207 113

494,260 659,245 488,520 656,753

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as held for trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date.The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group and the Company is the current
bid price.

All the financial instruments carried at fair value held by
the Group and the Company were measured using Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. During the year there was no
transfer of financial instruments between Level 1 and Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group approximate their
carrying values at the reporting date.
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recognised during the year is as follows:

2010
BT T
HKs$’000
Turnover
Gross insurance premiums 55,844
Insurance brokerage commission 319
Rental income from investment properties 6,596
Dividend income from available-
for-sale financial assets 17,316
Management fees 120
80,195
Movement in unearned insurance
premiums 5,743
Reinsurance premiums ceded and
reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned insurance premiums (7,270)
Other revenues
Interest income from bank deposits 943
Dividend income from listed equity
securities held for trading 51
Others 362
1,356

Total revenues 80,024

The amount of each significant category of revenue

2009

BETT

HKS$'000

75,208
517
6,806

8,174
120

90,825

(2,803)

(9,587)

1,533

103
337

1,973

80,408
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The Group identifies its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Executive Board
Committee and General Manager that are used to make
strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments held
and investees. For business entities and investments held,
operating performance evaluation and resources
allocation are based on individual business activities
operated and investments held by the Group.For investees,
operating performance evaluation is based on individual
investee of the Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

— Banking Investment: this segment includes the
Group'’s 36.75% interest in the Xiamen International
Bank Group which conducts banking business in
Mainland China and Macao.

— Insurance:this segmentincludes the Group’s general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macao and
insurance brokerage business in Hong Kong.

—  Property Development and Investment:this segment
includes the development and sale of residential
properties and leasing of high quality office space
in Mainland China.

—  Strategic Investment: this segment represents the
Group's investment in 72 million A-Share in Huaneng
Power International, Inc. ("Huaneng”).

—  Others: this segment includes results of operations
not directly identified under other reportable
segments (mainly industrial instrument
manufacturing and toll road investment in Mainland
China) and head office activities. Head office is also
considered to be a segment as discrete financial
information is available for the head office activities.
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For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision-makers monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and services
directly identifiable with individual segment are reported
directly under respective segments. All direct costs
incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’
costs related to head office activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to other segments, products and
services are grouped under head office. Transactions
between segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-
segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year’ i.e. profit after taxation of the
business entities, net income generated from investments
held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and current
assets held by the business entities, net book value of
investments held and share of net assets of and loans to
investees. Segment liabilities include insurance liabilities,
creditors and accruals, income tax payable and deferred
tax liabilities attributable to individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments or directly
related to those segments. Dividend payable to equity
holders of the Company is treated as unallocated liabilities
in reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuéd)

5 BEBEESEER () 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

P Y S . o .
(@ ZrbzEss - Hw LAE (E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
MERRRKA bk i3
RITRE R Property development RBRE 1] Inter-segment &8
Banking investment Insurance and investment Strategic investment Others elimination Consolidated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
EEFL | BETT | BBFm | ENTr | BB | ANT | BETFm | BT | BETm | AN | TR | BETr | BETR | EETL
HK$'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKS$'000 | HKS000 | HKS$'000 | HKS000 | HK$'000 | HKS000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS$'000 | HKS'000
HZ12A3NALEE  Yearended 31st December
| £1] Turnover
NAER External customers - — | 59384 | 79295 3,495 33% | 17,316 8174 - - - — | 80,195 | 90825
BEaE Inter-segments - - - - - - - - 2,952 2,936 (2,952) (2,936) = =
- — | 59384 | 79295 3,495 3356 | 17,316 8174 | 2952 293 | (2952)  (293) 80195 | 90,825
FMHAREFEZY  Movementin net unearned
REREHH insurance premiums and
reinsurance premiums
ceded - — | sl (12390 - = - = - = - — | s (12390
EfRA Other revenues - - 599 985 279 60 - - 559 928 (81) - 1,356 1973
WABE Total revenues - — | 58456 | 67890 3,774 3416 | 17,316 8174 | 351 3864 | (3,033)| (293) 80024 | 80,408
bl — 38 Other gains — net - = 5,499 5808 | 13,221 6,237 105 = 299 (86) = — | 19124 12,049
EELON L] Total operating income - — | 63,955 | 73788 | 16,995 9653 | 17421 8,174 3,810 3778 | (3,033) | (2936)) 99,148 | 92457
kTt Total operating expenses - — | (56672) (70176)| (10423)  (6438) - — | (28492 (309%) | 2952 2936 | (92,635) (104676)
EXEN/ (BR) Operating profit/(loss) - - 7,283 3612 6,572 3215 | 17,421 8174 | (24682) | (27,220) (81) = 6513 | (12219)
BERK Finance costs - - - - (27)  (2427) - - (546) (50) 81 - (192))  (2477)
ElELREHER Share of results of jointly
ES controlled entities 228,508 | 178,099 - - - - - - 5,108 7774 - — | 233616 | 185873
EEBEAAZE Share of results of associates - - - - - - - - 12,08 5,657 - — | 1208 5,657
BBLARA/ (B#8)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 228,508 | 178,099 7,283 3612 6,245 788 | 17,421 8174 | (8092) (13839) - — | 251365 | 176834
B Income tax expense - - (384) (495) 1 (7.480) 1 (32220 (1,731) - (427) (229) — — | (10,022) (3,946
KEERR/ (B8)  Profit/(loss) for the year 228,508 | 178,099 6,899 3117 | (1,235))  (2434)| 15690 8174 | (8519) (14068) - — | w38 172888
BITFTHEHA Interest income from
bank deposits - = 314 784 279 60 - = 350 689 - = 943 1533
rEERE Depreciation for the year - - 21 276 269 682 - - 879 920 - - 1,369 1878
AfESRER Impairment loss on
REEE available-for-sale
financial assets - - - — - - - - - 28 - - - 28

129
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o B 5 R RERE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5

4 > 25 A& 2y ==
BB B R () 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
O T VU e L .
(@ 4rifsEsE - Bam kA E E) (@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
NESRRRE
BRE 3 Property development FREE b1 &8
Banking investment Insurance and investment Strategic investment Others Consolidated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
BT | ARTr | BBFm | E¥Tr| AETm| ARfr| BETm| EETr | ABFm| ERTn | AEFm| EETr
HK$'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000 - HK$'000 HK$'000 | HKS$'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HKS$'000
R12B318 At 31st December
AAAIRKEAR The Company and subsidiaries — = 151,392 157,668 671,226 598,621 488,313 656,640 58,557 208,909 | 1,369,488 | 1,621,838
REAREHEE  Investmentsin jointly controlled
entities 1,574,218 | 1,320,848 - = - = - = 75,689 47,015 | 1,649,907 | 1,367,863
REBELNT Investments in associates - - - - - - - — 1,654 4735 | 11654 | 44735
HEE Total assets 1,574,218 | 1,320,848 151,392 157,668 | 671,226 598,621 488,313 656,640 145,900 300,659 | 3,031,049 | 3,034,436
KRFARKBAR The Company and subsidiaries - — 72,719 85894 | 268,282 266,657 - — 23,326 133,855 364,327 486,406
#eE Total liabilities - = 72,119 85,894 268,282 266,657 — — 23,326 133,855 364,327 486,406
REEEARR Capital expenditure incurred
during the year - - 7 156 21 10 - - 47 156 75 3
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HK$'000
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HZ12A318ILEE  Yearended 31st December

IREPBA Revenues from external
customers

R12A318 At 31st December

NG The Company and
subsidiaries

REARZHEE Investments in jointly
controlled entities
REBRENRA Investments in associates

EEFRBEE

Specified non-current assets

Hong Kong

2009

BETT
HK$'000

67,530

73,292

73,292

The following table sets out the information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenues from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and investments
in jointly controlled entities and associates (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered.The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment and investment
properties and the location of operations, in the case
of investments in jointly controlled entities and

associates.
hE A AP 58

Mainland China Macao Consolidated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
BEFL | BEFT| BEFT | BETr | BEFm | BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000
20,816 11,549 11,740 11,746 80,195 90,825
61,036 47,769 87 112 117,339 121,173
1,649,907 1,367,863 — — | 1,649,907 1,367,863
11,654 44,735 - — 11,654 44,735
1,722,597 1,460,367 87 112 | 1,778,900 1,533,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 AW — H 6 OTHER GAINS— NET
2010 2009
BEFT B TFT
HKS’000 HK$’000
RATEFERERSIERLN Fair value gains on listed equity
ERESSATE securities measured at fair value
& through profit or loss 413 768
KREMEE R FERR Fair value gains on revaluation of
&30 investment properties (Note 16) 16,864 11,253
HEREYE K= Gain on disposal of investment properties 1,482 -
bE X % 5 Net exchange gains 365 28
19,124 12,049

7 RECEBEAREESEELM 7

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

&% H AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2010 2009
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HKS’000
RIS EFMEAMEEEFE (@) Netinsurance claims incurred on

insurance business (a) 16,890 26,244

REBEBEENALER (b) Commission expenses incurred on
insurance business (b) 26,446 29,526
43,336 55,770
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Current year claims and loss adjustment
expenses

Additional cost for prior years' claims
and loss adjustment expenses

(Decrease)/increase in claims incurred
but not reported

Increase in the expected cost of
claims for unexpired risks

Current year claims and loss adjustment
expenses

Additional cost/(run-off savings)
for prior years’ claims and
loss adjustment expenses

Increase in claims incurred but not
reported

Increase in the expected cost of
claims for unexpired risks

EH

Gross

BT

HK$’000

15,534

966

(1,727)

661

15,434

8

Gross

BETT
HK$'000

21,827

3,189

1,641

479

27,136

2010
BiRkR

Reinsurance

BT

HK$’000

(209)

283

1,382

1,456
2009

BiRR

Reinsurance

BETT
HK$'000

(502)

(576)

186

(892)

B
Net

BETT

HK$’000

15,325

1,249

(345)

661

16,890

HEE
Net

BETT
HKS'000

21,325

2,613

1,827

479

26,244
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Gross commissions paid and payable
Less: Commissions received and
receivable from reinsurers

Net commission expenses

Operating profit/(loss) is stated after crediting
and charging the following:

Crediting

Net exchange gains

Rentals received and receivable from
investment properties less direct
outgoings

Charging

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 20(b))

Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings

Auditor’s remuneration

— provision for current year

— over provision for prior years

— interim attestation work

Management fee (Note 38(c))

Retirement benefit costs (a)

2010

BETT
HK$°000

26,995

(549)

26,446

2010

EBETT
HK$’000

365

5,634

1,369

110

2,322
2,722
2,373
(117)
360
1,880
816

2009

BETT

HK$’000

30,582

(1,056)

29,526

2009

BETT

HKS$'000

28

5,832

1,878
76

28
1,144
2,564
2,228
336

1,880
705
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(a)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available to all
eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30th
November 2000.The assets of the scheme were held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to
the scheme by the Group and employees were
calculated at 15% of the employees’ basic salary until
30th November 2000 when the DC Scheme was
replaced by a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) set up under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee are
calculated at the higher of 10% (or 6% for employees
who joined after 30th September 2000) of the
monthly basic salary and 5% of the monthly total
income, subject to a maximum contributions of
HK$4,000. The Group’s contributions to the DC
Scheme and MPF Scheme can be reduced by the
Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited in relation
to those employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. At 31st December
2010 and 2009, there were no material unutilised
forfeited contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage of
the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and the
respective municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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borrowings.

2010 2009
BT T B FT
HK$’000 HKS’000
Interest on bank loans (Note 31) 12,131 8,033
Interest on short term advance from
a substantial shareholder (Note 38(d)) 81 —
Interest income (a) (635) (1,225)
11,577 6,808
Less: Amounts capitalised in properties
under development for sale
(Note 21) (10,785) (4,331)
792 2,477
EERIE (@) Theamount represented interest income from short-

term bank deposits placed for unutilised specific
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Executive Directors

Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ding Shi Da'
Mr. Zhu Xue Lun
Mr. Li Jin Hua

Non-executive Director
Mr. Weng Jian Yu?

EENe
Directors’
fees

BT
HK$'000

60
60
20
60
100

48

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Kai Ming
Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To
Mr. So Hop Shing

1 R2010FE5 1 BBIEES
2 R2010E 71 BB EES

230
300
230

1,108

g EE
RE {20
EYHE
Salaries,
housing, other
allowances and
benefits in kind

EBETT
HK$'000

974

589

1,563

Resigned as Director on 1st May 2010

Resigned as Director on 1st July 2010

2010
k]
Total

BETT
HK$'000

60
60
20
60
1,074

637

230
300
230

2,671
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Executive Directors

Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman)'
Mr. Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ding Shi Da
Mr. Zhu Xue Lun
Mr. Weng Jian Yu
Mr. Li Jin Hua'

Mr. Chen Gui Zong?

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chen Le?
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ik
Directors’
fees
BETFT
HKS'000

42
60
88
60
100
53
18

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Kai Ming
Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To
Mr. So Hop Shing

1 MN20095E 4 23R ZFAE S
2 MR2009F4 B 23HEBIHEES

230
300
230

1,199

Appointed as Director on 23rd April 2009
Resigned as Director on 23rd April 2009

e BE
REARE
KEMH =
Salaries,
housing, other
allowances and
benefits in kind
BETFT
HKS'000

1,046
354

1,400

2009
B
Total
BEF T
HKS'000

42
60
88
60
1,146
407
18

18

230
300
230

2,599
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bt @z AT ARG AEFLASMIE
MeRAEEARRSME 2 E5RA
T XNFUFEALZMEFEWT :

HriE  BEREMER
KRB H s
RRE R & 5K

TE4T

A e

751,000,001 7T —
75 #1,500,0007T
751,500,001 7T —
75 2,000,0007T
75 5 2,000,0017T —
75 2,500,0007T

The analysis in note (a) above does not include those
individuals who are not directors but whose emoluments
are among the five highest in the Group. Details of the

emoluments paid to those individuals are as follows:

Salaries, housing and other allowances,
and benefits in kind

Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme

Bonus

Emoluments Band

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

2010

EBETT
HK$’000

3,730

48
4,100

7,878

2010
A8

Number of
Individuals

2009

BETT
HKs'000

3,724

24
4,920

8,668

2009
AZ

Number of
Individuals



BEFBHIIZRF AL T ERE R
KR 2 16.5% (20094 : 16.5%) HE B &
& - PRI MOBRPIRF 2 Bk BIIEZ R
F Al 5T FE R B FI 4 R B A i K2 B8 P
LRI EGE o

EERABmRHZRALT ¢

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on Mainland China and Macao profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in Mainland
China and Macao.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

2010 2009
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HKS’000
g HABiIE Current tax
BBMEH Hong Kong profits tax 328 344
AR B A R TR Mainland China taxation 1,731 —
RPITR I8 Macao taxation 139 226
2,198 570
TEEERBRES Over provision in prior years
JBPIREIE Macao taxation (2) (8)
AR TE (F7EFE32) Deferred tax (Note 32)
ERNEENESRED Relating to the origination and reversal
of temporary differences 7,826 3,384

FrigHi< it Income tax expense 10,022 3,946
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REE B BARR A E F 2 IR BLR A 5K
AEBZREMAREZERHBZLER

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

wmR taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2010 2009
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HKS’000
R B A& A Profit before taxation 251,365 176,834
B E16.5% 518 2 THIA Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 41,475 29,178
B A b [ S R A5 2R 2 Effect of different taxation rates in other
T tax jurisdictions 3,462 1,726
RERZHE R Effect on opening deferred tax balances
BEFIRE SR 2 E resulting from an increase in tax rate
during the year (32) —
AR Z WA Income not subject to taxation (40,940) (33,069)
NIk -3y Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 916 1,431
HEREYER BRI Deferred tax liabilities released upon
MIBEE disposal of investment properties (1,085) —
MR LA BT F E AR R Recognition of prior year's unrecognised
MERAIHRERER tax losses and deductible temporary
differences = (124)
AR A8 I P] HI R B By Increase in unrecognised tax losses and
ZEIEm deductible temporary differences 6,142 4,816
EMATEAR R 2 BIE Utilisation of tax losses previously not
518 recognised — (38)
TEREEBRS Over provision in prior years (2) (8)
H A Others 86 34
T8 &i S Income tax expense 10,022 3,946

ARBEDEEARGGESZFEEDR
S ARDR BB ISR A% B B # 3,165
BT (20097 : B¥4NETT) °

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a profit of HK$31.65 million (2009:
HKS$4.21 million) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.
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2010 2009
BETF T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
M2 A &R KRR E Final dividend proposed after the
5 A% 3 37 AR S 1 311 reporting date of 3 HK cents
(20094 : HE¥31L) (2009: 3 HK cents) per ordinary share 13,783 13,783

K25 BEREIRO IS ER AR A B
BwERTPIERE - EHREZR20114F
12A31H EFEIERBEMDE °

BREARRFZBEEZE2010F12H31
BIEFEARRRE=RA ARG RS
#524,134.38 7C (20094F : #1#17,288.8
Br) RFERNBEEITRG ZMEFHE
459,428,656 (20094F : 459,428,656) I &t

At

E_o

AEEAFREMBEFEIESHETA
BEEN LB AHREEFEN
FRETRNASRELBNER -

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has not
been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31st
December 2011.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31st December 2010 of HK$241,343,000
(2009: HK$172,888,000) and the weighted average of
459,428,656 (2009:459,428,656) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the years presented.
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720091418
AR
REHMERAERE

RHFE

HZ2009%
NANALEEE
HEEFE
—WEI2 %
— S HREYY
Y2 (B2

— 483
Ei2E
5
AEEHE

CAHEEREERERS

2 AFERE)

ENMNBARENRW

&
HREHFE

R2009E12A318 &
201051818

AR

REHMERAERE

RHFE

At 1st January 2009

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Net book value

Year ended
31st December 2009
Opening net book value
— as previously reported
— effect of change in
accounting policies
(Note 2.2)

— as restated
Translation differences
Additions
Charge for the year
Fair value gains credited

to leasehold buildings

revaluation reserve (d)
Reclassify as investment

properties (d)
Disposals

Closing net book value

At 31st December 2009 and
Ist January 2010

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Net book value

HELHR
T AR
Leasehold
land and
land use
rights

EBTT
HK$'000
29,625

(11,877)

17,748

17,748

17,748

(304)

29,504
(12,159)

17,345

FE
BREF
Building held
for own use

ERTT
HK$'000
9,280

(6,490)

2,790

2,790

9,003
(6,687)

2,316

R R
BERR
RS
Furniture,

fixtures, office

and computer
equipment

ERTT
HK$'000
8988
(6,824)

2,164

2,164

2,164

322
(447)

(100)

1,940

9,010
(7,070)

1,940

E
Motor
vehicles

ERTT
HK$ 000

3,180
(1,475)

1,705

1,705

1,705

#17)

1,291

3,185
(1,894)

1,291

k)

fvir

Total
BETTT
HKS'000
51,073

(26,666)

24,407

6,659

17,748
24,407
4

322
(1,477)

50,702
(27,810)

22,892



8220105
12A31BLEE
HEEFE
—WRI2 3R
—EBHBRREHZ
5 16z

—BE5
ERER
25
REEHE
BERLARHERR

wE (FEEN)

BRENFENIRW

HE
HRREFE
R2010E12/318

A
ZHTERBEER

REFE

Year ended
31st December 2010
Opening net book value
— as previously reported
— effect of change in
accounting policies
(Note 2.2)

— as restated

Translation differences

Additions

Charge for the year

Capitalised in properties under
development for sale (Note 21)

Reclassify from investment
properties (d)

Disposals

Closing net book value

At 31st December 2010

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

Net book value

HELHEK
T RE
Leasehold
land and
land use
rights

BETT
HK$'000

17,345

17,345

(325)

17,020

29,504
(12,484)

17,020

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

5
BREF
Building held
for own use

BETT
HKS'000

2,316

2,316

(292)

150

2,174

9,153
(6,979)

2,174

BA - %65
BERR
ERlRE
Furniture,

fixtures, office

and computer
equipment

BETT
HK$'000

1,940

1,940

75
(367)

(1)

(120)

1,530

8,515
(6,985)

1,530

RE
Motor
vehicles

BRTT
HKS$'000

1,291

1,291
14

(385)

920

3,226
(2,306)

920

am
Total

BRTT
HK$'000

5,547

17,345
22,892
17
75
(1,369)
(1)

150
(120)

21,644

50,398
(28,754)

21,644
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i B 5 R RE R ()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continugd)

15 3¢ ~ Bhas Rstits ()

(b) AT

(Continued)

(b) The Company

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Bl B
HETHER WERR
T ERE B
Leasehold FilE Furniture,
land and BRAET fixtures, office RE
landuse  Building held  and computer Motor B
rights for own use equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7200951 41A At 1t January 2009
A Cost 4,053 1,185 2929 2,000 10,167
RHTERAEES Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (1,240) (512) (2,083) (1,095) (4,930)
FRFE Net book value 2813 673 846 905 5237
EZ2009F Year ended
2ANBLEE 315t December 2009
BURERE Opening net book value
— 2% — as previously reported = 673 846 905 2,424
—BHBRED L — effect of change in
PE(HRBL) accounting policies
(Note 2.2) 2,813 — — — 2,813
— RE7 — as restated 2813 673 846 905 5,237
LA Additions - - 128 - 128
REEHE Charge for the year (20) (52) (134) (181) (387)
HE Disposals = = (36) = (36)
HREEFE Closing net book value 2,793 621 804 724 4,942
742009124318 & At 315t December 2009 and
201051418 15t January 2010
KA Cost 4,053 1,185 2877 2,000 10,115
ZHNERABER Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (1,260) (564) (2,073) (1,276) (5,173)
REFE Net book value 2,793 621 804 724 4,942

145



8220105
128318 LEE
HUEmFE
— A2
— 2 HREYY

Z2 (R0

—&&j

5

AERHAE
BRENZENIEW

&

HREEFE

72010F12A318
AR
ZEMERAESE

REFE

Year ended
31st December 2010
Opening net book value
— as previously reported
— effect of change in
accounting policies
(Note 2.2)

— as restated
Additions
Charge for the year
Reclassify from investment
properties (d)
Disposals

Closing net book value

At 31st December 2010
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses

Net book value

HELHE
TiERE
Leasehold
land and
land use
rights

BRTT
HKS'000

2,793

2,793

(41)

2,752

4,053

(1,301)

2,752

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

B
BRgT
Building held
for own use

BRI
HKS$'000

621

621

(34)

150

737

1,335

(598)

737

&R %65
BERR
- E
Furniture,

fixtures, office

and computer
equipment
BETT
HK$'000

804

804
23
(122)

(16)

689

2,818

(2,129)

689

RE
Motor
vehicles

BRTT
HK$'000

724

724

(145)

579

2,000

(1,421)

579

“am
Total

BBTT
HK$'000

2,149

2,793
4,942
23

(342)

150
(16)

4,757

10,206

(5,449)

4,757
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(0 MEEIRTERAENRTFE

DT
EEERARLD Leases held in Hong Kong
50F A Over 50 years
105 £50%F

EBRBUINTETL  Leases held outside Hong Kong

505F BA E
10 £504F

ANEE W E i o 4 b fE AR
B 7N 578 52,9508 7T (20094F 75

#2 9508 7T) °

d) BAHELEARN2009FEFLRHEA
e —REEEREENEEFHD
BRREMFEREANEFTION
RNFEWES © RYERREH D EH
R HER REHITE MOBUE B 1R

°
iR

{23 70 B P ) — (B AL 1 4F POt
BANEEFHEAETERY
% HELREE MR AHDFE

HRRFEEABTRA -

Over 50 years

(c)

Between 10 and 50 years

Between 10 and 50 years

(d)

The net book value of leasehold land and land use
rights is analysed as follows:

REH PN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

BETT| BETT| BE¥TR| BEETT
HK$’000 |  HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

4,490 4,512 2,147 2,150
11,735 11,994 = =
190 196 = =
605 643 605 643
17,020 17,345 2,752 2,793

The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights of
the Group was HK$29.5 million (2009: HK$29.5
million).

The amount represented the fair value gain of
building element of an owner-occupied residential
flat located in Mainland China recognised upon
reclassification to investment properties in 2009.That
premise was measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses before
reclassification.

A car park located in Mainland China was reclassified
from investment properties to owner-occupied
property during the year. Its fair value at the date of
change in use was recognised as cost of building
held for own use.



NS

M1A18

BYE - #RER
REBEFOHE
(F7EE15(d)

BB AEME
W3S
(FEE15(d))

AFEK R

HE

AEBEARRBNREY X EmRIREF

BT

EEEHERY
50F A £
106F £504F

EREBUINGERLD
504 A
105 £ 504

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

REE
Group
2010 2009
B TFT | EETIT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
At fair value
At 1st January 98,281 86,713
Reclassify from property,
plant and equipment
(Note 15(d)) — 315
Reclassify to property, plant
and equipment
(Note 15(d)) (150) —
Fair value gains 16,864 11,253
Disposal (19,300) —
95,695 98,281

KT

Company
2010 2009
BEFT| EETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
44,950 38,713
(150) —
13,221 6,237
58,021 44,950

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s interests in

investment properties at their net book value is as follows:

&
Group
2010 2009
B FT | EETIT
HK$’000 HKS'000
Leases held in Hong Kong
Over 50 years — 19,000
Between 10 and 50 years 36,500 33,500
Leases held outside Hong Kong
Over 50 years 1,174 831
Between 10 and 50 years 58,021 44,950
95,695 98,281

ZANNE
Company
2010 2009
BEFT| EETT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
58,021 44,950
58,021 44,950
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KEMERBL BHET AT - F—KF The investment properties were revalued based on their
BT fhE R EXER AR D A KRB fair values as at 31st December 2010 by independent
Hr&EETHEMBRAR - 122010512 professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
A31THMAFEEEEM - Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &

Consulting Limited.

—RWB R EIFE R AT EEESE50 The title deeds in respect of certain investment properties
BT (2009%F : JB¥45,2508 7T) FE TAL in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$36.5 million (2009:
RBBHNREMENDEERNBEBR HK$52.5 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
REEIERILE UHEEEHENS custody of the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in
BAE ° Hong Kong pursuant to the relevant regulatory

requirements.

AAT
Company

2010 2009

BEFT B F o

HKS’000 HKS'000

JE LT - HAK AN Unlisted shares, at cost 58,605 58,605

EXRTHEBRR - BE Loans to subsidiaries, interest bearing 279,700 279,700

BERTHERAR @ 28 Loans to subsidiaries, interest free 16,144 34,855
MBARIRK B Amounts due from subsidiaries,

interest free 231,524 209,269

527,368 523,824

585,973 582,429

B BEEE Less: Impairment losses (107,141) (101,590)

478,832 480,839



BT B AR ER & E R KRG EE A
K BARARK+ —EAREE - & TH
BARINA BERRE TREEMEM
ABZE %,%fﬁfm%?ﬁ%bw BE
PASE R R 10E M B FEF R 5T B

ATHERB3ER2010F12 831 B KR
EBEMNESE  BENBBEFEATEN
MBAR - BREEHBEIN - FTFE 2R
BB LA -

AT EH Name of company
EERE Directly held
LEHERBR LA Dorfine Development Limited

BREERAER

ARAFN® Co, L. @

B (B REARAH

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The loans to and amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured and are not repayable within the next twelve
months. The interest bearing loans to subsidiaries are
charged at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate, at
a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or at fixed
rates of 10% per annum.

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31st December 2010 which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.The
class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise

Min Xin (China) Investment Limited

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited

stated.

R EETR F5E
E2e BRRAZE  FitEz
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
and operations paid up capital interest activities
BF  RERAMIT 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment

Fujian Minxin Investment Consultants ~ FREE A & 270

&R 100% REEFERH

AE00E T
The People’s  Registered capital Investment
Republic of China of HK$3 million consulting services
RERLES 1REBRIET 100% RE R
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
& 55008 & 100% AR
BRAEK T ~REREH
Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general

of HKS1 each

insurance business



Thousand Limited

EEREARAT

AEER

BERERRAH

B BN EXER
ERARA
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Name of company

Directly held (Continued)

Take Chance Company Limited

Thousand Limited

Welljet Development Limited

Indirectly held

Min Xin Properties Limited

Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co,, Ltd. @

(1) FRERBUKBEFMEBAEZL
RNE - WRBZEEFENERRE
AR Z01% RN FALEKF K
BINREPHEER -

2 PEAMZzEZINELE

R
G2
Place of
incorporation
and operations

Hong Kong

RBRAES
British
Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PEARLNE

The People’s
Republic of China

BEATR
BHRRAHE
Particulars

of issued and
paid up capital

WREREL T
2 shares
of HK$1 each

RERIET
1 share of US$1

WEREL T
2 shares
of HKS1 each

5008 %
FRBEY T

5 million shares
of HK$1 each

HMER
AR
Registered capital
of HK$200 million

*RE
Pkt
Group's
equity
interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TEEH
Principal
activities

NERA
Property
investment

REER
Investment
holding

ESE
Property
investment

Investment
holding

NEERE
K&
Property
development
and sale

(1)  Company not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The net

assets of this company represent approximately 0.1% of

the Group’s consolidated totals and no turnover from

external customers was recorded by this company during

the year.

(2)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises in Mainland China



LMD - R

fEm B EFE
OB (EE1R

BT —RARZEH

LM - R

(@) AKERARZES

mF

7220091 H18
=

FE(H BRH 18 % A
KRR B
RESM-FEEM

720095128318 &
20101818
PR =%
FEAR BR T 18 5 A
IR B
REERFES
(R A) /8 m
& —RIE
NCIE N

ZHEEEE

#2010F12H31H

Unlisted investments, at cost
Share of net assets
Less: Impairment losses

Loan to a jointly controlled
entity (b)

Total investments (a)

Unlisted investments, at cost

BERZEDN (a)

At 1st January 2009

Translation difference

Share of profit after taxation

Dividend paid

Increase in investment revaluation
reserve

At 31st December 2009 and
1st January 2010

Translation difference

Share of profit after taxation

Dividend paid

(Decrease)/increase in investment
revaluation reserve

Share of movement of reserves
for partial disposal of a
subsidiary

At 31st December 2010

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

rE

Group
2010 2009
BET T | EETT
HKs$’000 HKS$’000
1,633,573 1,351,529
1,633,573 1,351,529
16,334 16,334
1,649,907 1,367,863
205,805 205,805

ARF
Company

2010 2009
BEFT| BETT
HKs$’000 HKS’000
205,805 205,805
(5) (5)
205,800 205,800
205,800 205,800

The Group'’s investments in jointly controlled entities

are analysed below:

EFERRTRE
XIB Group

BETIT
HK$'000

1,094,913

3,363

178,099

44,473

1,320,848
34,330
228,508

(9,468)

1,574,218

Hit
Others

EETFIT
HK$'000

48,149
(94)
7,774
(9,200)

386
47,015
1,198
5,108
(4,800)

27,642

(474)

75,689

k)
Total

BT
HK$'000

1,143,062
3,269
185,873
(9,200)

44,859
1,367,863
35,528
233,616
(4,800)

18,174

(474)

1,649,907
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(b) UERAEER  RENEREE
KE -

REBENARBEEREFEENTN
RITHERRAFZF SRS - HEF
RERERSMRITEFEREA (ER
38(a)) °

ATHE R BFER2010F12 831 B E A
EEMELEREEABEATENHRIE
FIERE HEEBEAHAELTA

E—J o

(b) The loan is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

Bank deposits placed by the Group and the Company with
jointly controlled financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank balances
(Note 38(a)).

The following list contains the particulars of those jointly
controlled entities at 31st December 2010 which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. All
of these entities are unlisted corporates.

30 EETR FREH
E2ne HRRAEE Bhkn
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HERHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
EPFBIRRT - Xiamen International Bank, mEARLM FHEA 36.75% RITRBEAER
REWBAH and its subsidiaries ANEH106,896% 7T
The People’s  Registered capital of Banking and
Republic of China  RMB1,068.96 million investment holding
BRREERAT Fortune Right Investment Limited B WREREE T 36.75% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
BRI RTT Luso International Banking Limited B 903,0428% A f& )2 36.75% RAT
46,9580 B R G
RPI%1,0007T
Macao 903,042 Class A Banking
and 46,958 Class B
Shares of

MOP1,000 each



AREHNEELR

EFERREERAH

XIB Properties Limited

AR

BEEEREERAT O

REKBAT

Name of jointly controlled entities

Directly held (Continued)

Setwide Investments Limited

Silver Win Development Limited

Xiamen International Investment
Limited

XIB Properties Limited

Indirectly held

Min Faith Investments Limited ",
and its subsidiaries

Fuzhou Charm Faith Autosystem
Co,, Ltd. "

%
G2
Place of
incorporation
and operations

&R
Hong Kong

&iE
Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

Gl At

Liberia

&R

Hong Kong

PEARLANE

The People’s
Republic of China

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BETR
BRRAHE
Particulars

of issued and
paid up capital

WEREL T
2 shares
of HK$1 each

WREREL T
2 shares
of HK$1 each

18K
SREBIT
10,000 shares
of HK$1 each

1004k
EEERZ
100 shares

of no par value

1008%
FREBIT
100 shares
of HK$1 each

HMER
W0EET
Registered capital
of US$2.7 million

FREW
Ak
Group's
effective
interest

36.75%

36.75%

36.75%

36.75%

40%

40%

TEEE
Principal
activities

NERE
Property
investment

ES
Property
investment

RARK

Investment
holding

UESIE

Property
investment

RARK

Investment
holding

EERHEE
PFER
Manufacturing
and distribution of
digital instruments
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#f &
EEHE
Place of
incorporation
HERHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations
BiEEs (@) Indirectly held (Continued)
BMNERBBANE BMNEABBANE hEARLMNE
BRARO BRARO
The People’s
Republic of China
RMEBEB(LEEBER  Fuzhou Charm Faith Instruments & AR AR
YN Co, Ltd. "
The People’s

Republic of China

BNERRERER Fuzhou Hi-Tech Instruments hEARLNE
YNGR Co, Ltd. "

The People’s

Republic of China

BEEERIIER Min Faith Instruments Limited &b

BRAR
Hong Kong
KEEEZRAMB/AEY  Tianjin Charm Faith Instruments  FE AR LFE
Co., Ltd.
The People’s
Republic of China
(1) ELEERKEBSTAEBAEZZ (1)

BETR
HRRAHE
Particulars

of issued and
paid up capital

At EA
ARB4008 T
Registered capital
of RMB4 million

&R
S0EET
Registered capital
of US$0.5 million

&R
AEB1,03ET
Registered capital

of RMB10.03 million

1001
gREBIT
100 shares
of HKS1 each

A EA
T0EXTT
Registered capital
of US$0.7 million

FREH

AL
Group's TEER
effective Principal
interest activities
40% HE
ETEM
Distribution of

electrical products

28% EERHE
PFER
Manufacturing

and distribution of
digital instruments

0% HEETER
kRERR
Distribution of

digital instruments

and investment

holding

20.4% REER

Investment
holding

17.5% EERHE
PFER
Manufacturing

and distribution of

digital instruments

NE] - BIELERARZEERERE
BAE N DB REAREGSBELZ
2.2%K 2% °

Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The
aggregate net assets and profit before taxation
attributable to these companies represent approximately
2.2% and 2% respectively of the Group’s consolidated
totals.



NI BER RSB AR E N K RE
HEBRBESARIMTHNARES
JRBIFfm 2 A TS #R R

EFEBRTRE
XIB Group

2010 2009
AREFT | AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets 70,901,736 | 46,892,529
=L Liabilities (67,569,438) (44,079,124)
BEFHE Net assets 3,332,298 2,813,405
WA Income 2,230,366 1,948,022
T Expenses (1,691,869)|  (1,535,048)
BB ARA Profit after taxation 538,497 412,974

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The financial information of the Group's jointly controlled
entities extracted from their financial statements prepared
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:

AEEELER
Hith &t Group's
Others Total attributable interests

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
BETFT BETFT BETFT BB BETFT BEFT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS000
208,669 133,602 | 83,837,267 53,591,085 | 30,817,132 19,699,222
(13,630) (12,552) | (79,711,782) | (50,262,753) | (29,294,615) (18,472,061)
195,039 121,050 4,125,485 3,328,332 1,522,517 1,227,161
62,731 76,849 2,649,398 2,293,308 975,692 845,289
(50,301) (57,522) | (2,012,446) (1,804,100) (741,208) (664,876)
12,430 19,327 636,952 489,208 234,484 180,413
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JELETIR Unlisted investments,
BN (a) at cost (a)
&1 & & F1E (b) Share of net assets (b)

ERTHERF (b)

LM - RAAR

(@) REREAERREBRREOBRA
Al ([fBEER]) IR E 720094 A
L ESHEESEN N EANE
2~ A (FEE20(b)) °

(b) ARF—KEEHEQT @ HER
WERAR ([8H#]) - MARK
12,2008 7T (FEXE%13,8548
TR EBERBEILIRBAK
BERABR AR ZZEB70%MHE
T BEARSHERFATK - A%
E72009F R B e ERFAME
BHHERTIARE -

REERFAWBREBHERSREL
E¥1,9868 T - ARBREREE
R E(RBE N R EERNERE
B E WS FREANEEE,0608 T
(BREEFHBEUEREMEZEYK
mARRBBEOINET EFHE
&) o ANEE R AE R S
REMNEMFEHSLEK2308

TEEDBRERBERN -

Loans to associates (b)

Unlisted investments, at cost

(a)

rE ARAFE

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT | BEEFL | BEFT | EETT
HKs$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
— — 10,746 10,746
11,654 25,422 — _
11,654 25,422 10,746 10,746
— 19,313 — —
11,654 44,735 10,746 10,746
10,746 10,749 10,746 10,746

The investment in Fujian Hua Yuan City Construction
Environment Protection Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Hua Yuan”)
was reclassified from available-for-sale financial
assets to associates in 2009 (Note 20(b)).

The transaction to sell the entire 70% equity interest
in Maanshan Huan Tong Highway Development
Limited for a consideration of RMB122 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$138.54 million) by
Hong Kong Vigorous Limited (“Vigorous”),an indirect
associate of the Company, was completed during the
year.The deposit received by the Group in 2009 was
refunded at the request of Vigorous during the year.

During the year, the Group received a cash dividend
of approximately HK$19.86 million from Vigorous. In
the consolidated income statement, the Group’s
share of results of associates included the share of
disposal gain of approximately HK$10.69 million
(including the reclassification of share of exchange
translation reserve previously recognised in other
comprehensive income). The Group also reclassified
the share of other reserves previously recognised in
equity of approximately HK$2.3 million to retained
profits directly.
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RE BTN F AW B EENTE During the year, the Group also received from
FEETHORREFEE1,9348 Vigorous the repayment of shareholder’s loan of
T ZBRRERBARE B LB 2 HK$19.34 million granted to it in prior year. That
®E  WHAREER RERER shareholder’s loan represents the Group’s
TEENE o investments in Vigorous and is unsecured, interest

free and has no fixed repayment terms.

ATHRERBIER2010F12831HE A The following list contains the particulars of the associate
EENEEXNEEREATENHED at 31st December 2010 which principally affected the
Ao WWHtE AR RIELTAR - results or assets of the Group. This associate is unlisted
corporate.
R BRTR FEEN
GEhy HRRAHE BHER
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
BEAT B Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
RELERMERRBRN  Fujian Hua Yuan City Construction ~~ REAR £ FHEA 25% K RAR
BRAG O Environment Protection Co., Ltd." ARE4267E T B RS
The People's Registered capital Sewage and
Republic of China  of RMB42.67 million waste treatment
services
(1) SERBERKESITMEBAEZZ (1)  Company not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The
NAE] o B AR Z EEFE LR aggregate net assets and profit before taxation
AE M D B AR EBIGREBE 2 attributable to this company represent approximately
0.4%52.0.1% 0.4% and 0.1% respectively of the Group’s consolidated

totals.
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THHMBERDFEEERNSERNEE R The financial information of the Group’s associates
ARBESEEN TN AR RA extracted from their financial statements prepared in
Fr#m 6l 2 B i3k % accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:

BE Bff kxR A i #

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit

ERTT  EETRm  ERTn  EEFn EETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

20105 2010
@t Aggregated 86,626 (28,777) 57,849 21,828 39,821
EEBHELESR Group's attributable
interest 21,656 (7,194) 14,462 5,300 12,028
2009F 2009
@t Aggregated 410,461 (239,596) 170,865 22,483 31,182
REEMERER Group's attributable
interest 89,692 (51,483) 38,209 5,145 5,657
rE b NS
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
BYFT | BT | BT | EEFT
HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
~NEE At fair value
M1 A1R At 1st January 656,640 576,576 | 656,640 576,576
RIEEEHHEES Fair value (loss)/gain
R ATEE recognised in investment
(B518) MWz= revaluation reserve (168,327) 90,838 | (168,327) 90,810
R R ERL Impairment loss recognised
BB EE in income statement — (28) — —
ENHER Reclassified to
it & N 7] (b) associates (b) — (10,746) — (10,746)

®12H31H At 31st December 488,313 656,640 488,313 656,640
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REE KRR R A H EREZ S8 The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s available-
BREES T : for-sale equity securities at their carrying value is as
follows:
rEE PN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

BT | EBEETIT | B¥ T | EETT

HKS’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
EHRER S Listed equity securities

EBEHFRZGF Stock Exchange of Shanghai | 488,313 656,640 | 488,313 656,640
7201012318 - XEERE 5H The Group held the following available-for-sale equity

HEEREES - securities as at 31st December 2010:
FEEN
st TEEH R
Place of Principal Group's
AT EHE Company name incorporation activities effective interest
ERERSNIRHERLA Huaneng Power International, Inc. PEARLANE BFEREEEN 0.51%
(EL:A) ("Huaneng”) (7,2008 [RAR)
The People’s  Generation and sale (72 million
Republic of China of electric power A-Share)
@ BRPEAENTEEREES (@) Thetax bureau in Fuzhou, Mainland China had issued
%8 AN &£ B 72 2007 F H 53,6008 % certificates of tax exemption for the gain from
ERARMBKRENERER - K disposal of 36 million A-Share of Huaneng by the
SRR EHEEMEEWEA Group in 2007, hence the Group has not provided
BR - WERRERNREBMG® any tax provision against the fair value gain/loss
FEERN RN A FEYKEEIR recognised in other comprehensive income and
BT - accumulated in equity in the investment revaluation

reserve.
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HRAAREERE - BREKE
FEEBERETAR([BERE
R KARBERKKERA
A - @At - AEER2009F 48 #
BEFERN2%B A EENREE
oA ENT - BEREEER
MAFLEFHER  AREREGE
BaXxANERREBEELIE
TL - M A EHEEFTTEAHE
RNAEHILERRA °

In April 2009, the Group reclassified the investment
of a 25% equity interest in Fujian Hua Yuan to

associates as the Company’s substantial shareholder,

Fujian Investment and Development Holdings
Corporation (“FIDHC"), became the ultimate holding
company of Fujian Hua Yuan. According to the result

of assessment of the fair value of Fujian Hua Yuan,

the Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$0.03

million in the consolidated income statement and

the fair value was re-measured as the cost of the

investments in associates.

rEE
Group

2010
BET T
HK$’000
BEERBEEFRIESR Within normal operating cycle included
LERHANRME in current assets
=+ b {55 A A Land use rights 340,721
BEKARERE Construction costs and capitalised
F expenditures 239,452
BEKAEARE Borrowing costs capitalised 15,266
595,439

2010F A BB ERENEERNFERN
BARFRETFE 5H6.16% (20097F
5.05%) ©

EHMHELEERTYEGLNHERA

b, o

2009

BT T
HK$'000

329,310

99,012
4,331

432,653

The capitalisation rate used to determine the net

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation in 2010 was
6.16% (2009: 5.05%)

All properties under development for sale are located in
Mainland China.



R1A1H

30

STAGEEBERNEE
(FFE7(b)

M12A831H

RIB - EREFNA
R
A+ AR

BRFAEARK

BREEARK
B ORUE 1R

At 1st January
Additions

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Amortisation charged to consolidated

income statement (Note 7(b))

At 31st December

Due from agents, brokers and
intermediates
Less: Impairment losses

Due from contract holders

Due from reinsurers
Less: Impairment losses

rEH
Group
2010 2009
BETF T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
18,346 15,781
23,856 32,091
(26,446) (29,526)
15,756 18,346
AEE
Group
2010 2009
BETF T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
11,047 16,479
— (2,541)
11,047 13,938
13 85
103 713
— (529)
103 184
11,163 14,207
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RER WG A BB 1D Z EEHR — AR 90
RENORTE - REBEBEKZEE K
R EEEEREAF_FLEER H
SRERENERTE °

R2010F 12318 R R BRI
DT RBEZHE) W -

30HA Within 30 days
31260H 31-60 days
61290H 61-90 days
538 90 H Over 90 days

72010F12A8318 » EBHERBESN
R FEUR X 575 5 4668 7T (20094 : 7B
#5998 7T) + ZE R EWKAIERER D
M

90H
i@ 90H

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms of
insurance receivable, including whether guarantees from
third parties are required, are determined by senior
management.

At 31st December 2010, the ageing analysis of insurance
receivable by invoice date was as follows:

rEE

Group
2010 2009
BEFT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,415 3,355
2,146 3,666
2,435 3,311
3,167 3,875
11,163 14,207

At 31st December 2010, insurance receivable of HK$4.66
million (2009: HK$5.99 million) was past due but not
impaired.The ageing analysis of these insurance receivable
was as follows:

£33
Group

2010 2009
EBETFT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,492 2,105
3,167 3,882
4,659 5,987
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rEE

Group
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000

BiRE ARBGRREE Reinsurers’ share of insurance
(71 #28) liabilities (Note 28) 2,728 4,536
LESRTBEEE T ARREKRR GE Balance above exclude the amounts due from reinsurers
E23) NERBARNAEERIREL in respect of claims already paid by the Group on the
B XTI ERARIE - contracts that are reinsured, which are included in
insurance receivable (Note 23).

AEE

Group
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FENEEMEH Prepaid enterprise income tax 717 —
TET IR BT Prepaid land appreciation tax 1,549 —
AN EER Prepaid business tax 3,610 —
TEfT A Ath 7 & Prepaid other taxes 84 —
A7 Y (=] £ 18 Tax recoverable 15 —
5,975 _
BNHeRBEEFEAMNEEEERE Prepaid taxes are calculated based on certain percentage
RYEKEMTEE RIRE T A LEr of cash received from pre-sale of properties under

At

5o development for sale in Mainland China.
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FFE BIRERES

REL L™

RERIBITHEFRIERNEBRAQF
DRBEFERPBERME TIRITZ TR
AR®1,2268 7T (FEANE1,4468
7L) R AR3338 T (FEAEME3938
70) (2009128318 : DRIHARE
223678 TR AR®E11,8658 T+ F1E

i —

475 ¥4 25,498 88 T M B #513,5268 1) °

H

z

BEEERBREEER AT <
EN—ZRXWBRARREEEHBET I
A #1,60085 7T (2009912 A31H : B
1,60087T) 2 B B RIWITFER © &M
BAR MR 4938 T (FED
BEE 4798 L) 2 RITIF R AKF &R PT
CRBOE BN E A 2 B T 48 7E (2009
F12A318 : LR E T - FE
#)7E 4098 L) ©

7 /|
Pl

Equity securities held for

REH PN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

BETT| BETT | BETH| BETT
HK$’000 |  HKS'000 | HK$'000 |  HKS'000

trading, listed in Hong Kong
—&mE — at market value

5,947 2,605 207 113

Included in cash and bank balances are deposits of
approximately RMB12.26 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$14.46 million) and RMB3.33 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3.93 million) respectively
placed with certain banks in Mainland China by the Group
and the Company (31st December 2009: approximately
RMB223.67 million and RMB118.65 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$254.98 million and HK$135.26 million
respectively).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary
maintains at all times a portion of its funds, being not less
than HK$16 million (31st December 2009: HKS 16 million),
in bank deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a
bank deposit of approximately MOP4.93 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.79 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macao Insurance
Ordinance (31st December 2009: approximately MOP4.21
million, equivalent to approximately HK$4.09 million).



REAEEN-RMBRRABERD
BAmmENETERBSRBERM
A& TIRITHEMER - ZHBARHK
RBOAREBET (FENEKE
TO) MBS RN ERITIRP @ (R~
LY EERBERRRBERNRE SR
(fE¥34) - EARESRBEAEVEER
HELEUSH [ X E | R T B B IRTT
By AR R o

RARBRIBIRITE R H#E GEE31) 2
FIE - R2009F 12 A31 HMIRTTHETRL
BHESTIB L EER TRERRIT - UE
TIARRRINEREM - EENERTFR
ERF AR o

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

According to the guarantees provided by a subsidiary of
the Group in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to certain purchasers of that subsidiary’s
properties in Mainland China, a sum of approximately
RMBO0.73 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.86
million) held by that subsidiary was placed at a designated
bank account as deposits for potential default in payment
of mortgage loans advanced to those property purchasers
(Note 34).Such deposits will only be released when those
property purchasers obtain the “property title certificate”
which is then pledged to the relevant banks.

The Company’s bank balances of approximately HK$8.73
million charged to the lending bank for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations pursuant to the
requirements of the bank loan agreement (Note 31(a)) at
31st December 2009 were released during the year.
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rEE
Group
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
EH Gross
EERRERBRAR Claims reported and loss adjustment
2R expenses 18,218 21,518
BERLEBRRERRE Claims incurred but not reported 11,181 12,908
29,399 34,426
RAmBRE Unearned premiums 32,693 38,436
AN v B R B 4 4 Unexpired risks provision 2,065 1,404
RBRETHE £HE Total insurance liabilities, gross 64,157 74,266
W EBRBRARIE Recoverable from reinsurers
EEMRRERBLAE Claims reported and loss adjustment
&M expenses (586) (838)
BRAEREHRRE Claims incurred but not reported (1,661) (3,043)
(2,247) (3,881)
RmHRE Unearned premiums (481) (655)
BARBAEGRBET Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
BEE (EE24) liabilities (Note 24) (2,728) (4,536)
ol Net
EE2RRERBLAARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
& A expenses 17,632 20,680
EREBERERRE Claims incurred but not reported 9,520 9,865
27,152 30,545
RmERE Unearned premiums 32,212 37,781
7R HA R B B Unexpired risks provision 2,065 1,404
REEERE F&#E Total insurance liabilities, net 61,429 69,730



EERREER

%@%ﬂ¢k§%&E§*

FERERREFETHEED MK
HAMT 1B R S AL R M m B TR AR o

BEE2REE

RELR P

RM1A1A

EANBRSERMEE
EEEm/ (R 0)

E%EL*E#

R12A31H

E2REE
RELR P

R12A31R

Notified claims

Incurred but not reported

At 1st January

Cash paid for claims settled during the year
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

arising from current year claims

arising from prior year claims

arising from incurred but not reported

At 31st December

Notified claims

Incurred but not reported

At 31st December

BEE

E AR 2 & Min Xin Holdings Limited

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment

expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of

expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.

i#

Gross

ERFR
HK$'000

21,518
12,908

34,426
(19,800)

15,534
966

(1,727)

29,399

18,218
11,181

29,399

2010
BiRR

Reinsurance

ERFR
HK$'000

(838)
(3,043)

(3,881)
178

(209)
283

1,382

(2,247)

(586)
(1,661)

(2,247)

B8
Net

ERFR
HK$'000

20,680
9,865

30,545
(19,622)

15,325
1,249

(345)

27,152

17,632
9,520

27,152

8

Gross

ERTT
HK$'000

22,859
11,267

34,126
(26,358)

21,828
3,189

1,641

34,426

21,518
12,908

34,426

Reinsurance

ERTT
HK$'000

(368)
(3.229)

(3,597)
609

(503)
(576)

186

(3,881)

(838)
(3,043)

(3,881)

E
Net

ERTT
HK$'000

22,491
8,038

30,529
(25,749)

21,325
2,613

1,827

30,545

20,680
9,865

30,545
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2010 2009
£8 BRE B8 et Bk E
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

E¥Frn ARTn EMTR | ERTT  ERTT ERTR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 | HKS0O00  HKSO00  HKS'000

MA1R At 1st January 38,436 (655) 37,781 35,633 (1,295) 34,338
EREN Increase during the year 28,959 (472) 28,487 38,436 (655) 37,781
FRek Release during the year (34,702) 646 (34,056) (35,633) 1,295 (34,338)
R12A318 At 31st December 32,693 (481) 32,212 38,436 (655) 37,781
RmIREBELEFES RASBEAEELE Provisions for unearned premiums represent the liability
FHEB MR BNEHRREHOET - for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group’s

obligations are not expired at year-end.

2010 2009
£8 BRE B8 et Bk E
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

E¥TFR EMFTT EMTn | E¥Tn  BETT  EETR
HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 | HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000

RMATA At Tst January 1,404 - 1,404 925 = 925
EREM Increase during the year 661 - 661 479 = 479
R12A31R At 31st December 2,065 - 2,065 1,404 — 1,404
FomEAE R EE S HEAE BRI AR The unexpired risk provision relates to the insurance
ERBLEERRARELEESNRR contracts for which the Group expects to pay claims in

BHE - excess of the related unearned premium provision.



R2010F12H31H © REBEN A ER
DT RBEZEE) W :
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At 31st December 2010, the ageing analysis of the
insurance payable by invoice date was as follows:

30HA Within 30 days
31260H 31-60 days
61%290H 61-90 days
BiE 90H Over 90 days

R2010F 12 A3 HN B BIEREER
BHEEZRRTWENEEEETEN
FERTEEK A REFEHAHARL876
BT (ZEABs5,7518 78) (2009412
A318 : A AR 2704870 © FEAE
#3,08387C) °

rEE
Group
2010 2009
EBETFT BT T
HKs$’000 HKS’000
1,659 3,533
801 1,404
826 1,019
1,088 1,606
4,374 7,562

The balance at 31st December 2010 included the
construction costs payable and accruals for properties
under development for sale of approximately RMB48.76
million (equivalent to approximately HK$57.51 million)
based on project progress measured by the Group
(31st December 2009: approximately RMB27.04 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$30.83 million).
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£3 NS
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

BYETT | BETT | BETE| B¥TT
HK$’000 |  HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

REJSRTTE TN » B  Long-term bank loans, secured
LA TT A BN (a) Denominated in HK Dollars (a) — 53,946 — 53,946
AR AN (b) Denominated in Renminbi (b) | 117,444 169,315 — —

117,444 223,261 — 53,946

EHISRITE R - A3 Short-term bank loan, secured
LA TT R EN (o) Denominated in HK Dollars (c) 15,000 — 15,000 —
132,444 223,261 15,000 53,946

B BN TRBAR Less: Amounts due within one

WZ—FR year included under
B EARY 1B current liabilities (132,444), (109,710)|  (15,000) (53,946)
— 113,551 — —
(@) UWERKRBERFRZEEER R (@) The outstanding balance of the term loans was fully
2009F 12 A3THMERFF XA repaid during the year and the effective interest rate

19 - at 31st December 2009 was 1.9% per annum.



(b)

R = &R )N 7R 20094F A1) A B Ay b Ak M
MH—RFBITRDMARE15ET
WRFHZEMNERER - tERRE1E
BFNVEZRIBENREEENR - F
EHEMNRFAREEEFREAEAR
¥5,0008 7T ° WLIRTTERAR(E
FINFB M RN T — BT
HEREERER - ZEIHRN
2010F12 A31HMERAENARK
28,8878 T (FEA B 34,0728
7t) (2009F12831H : AR

28,8878 T © HEX)B132,9318
JC) °©

PLEIRITEFRBF BRPEARRTT
AR AREEREER R NS =
ST 12201012 A3 HERF
= A6.4E (2009128318
6.4F) °

REA - RARERBEBE KT
NG —EFEREREEA5000
B RBEXEEB1,0008 7T °
ZERBEENBTE—RE2EMBA
AEEN BRI ERYEIEER -
ZYENREFEAEE1,2148

ﬁo

HIRTTE R T SR BB RITRIZE
HREMBEZETE » 1£2010F12A4
3B ERFEFES18E -

(b)
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In 2009, Minxin Suzhou drew down the two-year
floating rate term loans of RMB150 million for
financing the construction costs of its property
development project from a bank in Suzhou,
Mainland China. Minxin Suzhou has repaid the
principal of RMB50 million during the year.The bank
loan was secured by the land use rights of a parcel
of land in Suzhou held by Minxin Suzhou with a book
value of approximately RMB288.87 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$340.72 million) as
at 31st December 2010 (31st December 2009:
approximately RMB288.87 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$329.31 million).

The bank loan was bearing interest at a spread over
Renminbi lending rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China and the effective interest rate at 31st
December 2010 was 6.4% per annum (31st
December 2009: 6.4%).

During the year, the Company has obtained a
revolving loan facility of HK$50 million and an
overdraft facility of $10 million from a bank in Hong
Kong.These facilities were secured by the self-use
office building owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Hong Kong with a net book value of HK$12.14
million.

The bank loan was bearing interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate at 31st December 2010 was 1.8% per
annum.
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The carrying amounts of bank loans are denominated in

the following currencies:

REE AN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT | BETT | BETRT| EETT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKs$’000 HKS’000
Denominated in HK Dollars 15,000 53,946 15,000 53,946
Denominated in Renminbi 117,444 169,315 — —
132,444 223,261 15,000 53,946
The maturity profile of the bank loans is as follows:
rEH ARF
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
BEFT | BETT | B¥TR| EETT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Within 1 year 132,444 109,710 15,000 53,946
More than 1 year but
within 2 years — 113,551 — —
132,444 223,261 15,000 53,946
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Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation rate
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and 25%
(2009: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.

The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as

follows:
EH NN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

YT | EETT | BETR| BETT
HK$’000 | HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

M1A18 At 1st January (9,912) 6,528) | (10,423) (7,201)
EEFERER Deferred taxation charged
bk 2 EETIB to current year’s
income statement (7,826) (3,384) (7,480) (3,222)
M =58 Translation differences 2 — — —
M12H31H At 31st December (17,736) (9,912) (17,903) (10,423)

EEFMBHEENABEETREMZ
BB RERBR A E IR Mt e 2
FIB1ERER - 7A20105F12 8318 » A&
[ R FERR A A LA $H R PR FE SR T URAAY
R 18 R AT HUR B = R A 2,641 7T
(2009%F : 4978#2.11870) » UWLFRIBH LY
7B #2358 7T (20094F : #)B %2118 7T)
WHERHE  FSRHERATNRERER
FSE AN EHER o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At
31st December 2010, the Group did not recognise tax
losses and deductible temporary differences of
approximately HK$264 million (2009: approximately
HK$210 million) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. The tax losses of approximately HK$235
million (2009: approximately HK$210 million) have no
expiry date and the balance of tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are going to be expired within five
years.
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FRBELEFSHEERAGBZEH (HEF The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
—EBM R 2 AR IR SERD AT ¢ (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

MEBIEITE R
REMEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation and
investment properties

revaluation
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
»1A1H At 1st January 14,085 9,926
TEFEHREERK Charged to current year's consolidated
HBR income statement 6,982 4,159
M12A31H At 31st December 21,067 14,085
hnE R AT B &
BEMEER
Accelerated tax
depreciation and
investment properties
revaluation
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
»1A1H At 1st January 10,664 7,469
TEFEERE Charged to current year’s
HBR income statement 7,445 3,195

MW12A31H At 31st December 18,109 10,664
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A MBRETERE @)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32 WS () 32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
I ik i 15RO Deferred income tax assets
Y The Group
gt BiE B
Accrued expenses Tax losses Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
BEFT | BEFT | BETT | BEFr | BEFT | EETT
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R1A1H At 1st January (3) (4) (4,170) (3,394) (4,173) (3,398)
EEEEREBERE Charged/(credited) to current
nk/ (28 year's consolidated income
statement 3 1 841 (776) 844 (775)
Rz Translation differences = = (2) = (2) =
R12A31H At 315t December - 3) (3,331) (4,170) (3,331) (4,173)
y: N/ The Company
Hiig
Tax losses
2010 2009
BT T B TFT
HK$’000 HKS’000
»®1A1H At 1st January (241) (268)
EEFERER Charged to current year’s
kR income statement 35 27
M12A31R° At 31st December (206) (241)

176
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At ABEEREEESHBEEE S The following amount, determined after appropriate
E1%  THSBEIBEAKARATIR offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities, is

shown in the statement of financial position:

REE KAF
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

BETT| BETT| BE¥TR| BEETT
HK$’000 |  HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

RIS EE Deferred income tax assets
#1218 A& To be recovered after
U @l 12 months 448 607 — —
B EN 1218 B R To be recovered within
U =] 12 months 27 51 — —
475 658 — _
RIEFEHRA s Deferred income tax liabilities
#1128 A% To be settled after
e 12 months (18,211) (10,570) | (17,903) (10,423)

(17,736) (9,912) (17,903) (10,423)



EERA Authorised
LRRERAEK T Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
EEk 2EBOR Ordinary shares, issued and
HMR fully paid
LRRERAEK T Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

EBRBE A AR EEIRT R E IR
B TEBRREZ LIERE —RNKR
S o A BB B AR ARIGRE
ERAREFES o

B {= £ E 4[R2 7] Min Xin Holdings Limited

2010 2009
R &E BETFT Ri7 & H BEFT
No. of shares HK$’000 = No. of shares HKS$000
800,000,000 800,000 | 800,000,000 800,000
459,428,656 459,429 | 459,428,656 459,429

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.
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H{b B2 Other reserves
BXBE REEf
fkfEe fkEe
BEx  RbiE Capital Investment fedobet ]
Share Share redemption revaluation INgt Retained s
capital  premium reserve reserve  Sub-total profits Total

ENFrn ERTn ARTn  ERTR  ENTn  ARTn ERTR
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

200951710 At 1st January 2009 459,429 384,620 47,086 329,812 761,518 88,319 1,309,266
TEERENRLE Total comprehensive income
for the year — — — 90,810 90,810 4,210 95,020
RE Dividend - - - - - (13783) (13783
20095128318 R At 315t December 2009 and
20105171A 1st January 2010 459,429 384,620 47,086 420,622 852,328 78,746 1,390,503
TEERAKRLE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (168,327) (168,327) 31,649 (136,678)

=
=5
(i3

Dividend - — - - — (13,783) (13,783)

2010F12A31H At 31st December 2010 459,429 384,620 47,086 252,295 684,001 96,612 1,240,042
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(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii)  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

— Non-distributable reserve set aside by a jointly
controlled financial institution from its retained
earnings in accordance with the Financial System Act
of Macao.

—  General reserve established and maintained within
equity holders’ equity of a jointly controlled financial
institution pursuant to Caijin [2005] No.49 “Measures
on General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions”issued by Ministry of Finance.
The general reserve was established through the
appropriation of income to cover unidentified
potential impairment losses.

(iii)  General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained earnings
and is available for general use.

(iv) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

— goodwill and the excess of the Group's interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
business combination and the investments in
associates prior to 1st January 2001;

— capitalisation of reserves for the purpose of
increasing the share capital of jointly controlled
entities and their subsidiaries in previous years; and

—  share of movement in reserves recorded in equity of
a jointly controlled entity for the change in the
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control.
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(v) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets (less related deferred tax charge) held
by the Company and jointly controlled entities.

(vi) Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings at the
date of reclassification from owner-occupied property to
investment property.

(vii) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities into the reporting currency of the
Company.

The Group had the following financial guarantees:

AEE
Group

2010 2009

BETF T BT T

HK$’000 HKS'000

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities

ER for certain purchasers 28,609 —
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As at 31st December 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks to certain purchasers of that
subsidiary’s properties under development for sale in
Mainland China.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by those purchasers, that subsidiary
is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest and penalty
owed by those defaulted purchasers to the relevant banks
and that subsidiary is entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The guarantee
period starts from the date of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends when the property purchaser
obtains the “property title certificate” which is then
pledged to the relevant banks.

The Group considers that the net realisable value of the
related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalty in case of default in payments
and therefore no provision has been made for those
guarantees in these consolidated financial statements.
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A B MEFTERE @)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continugd)

35 K 35 COMMITMENTS
(@) Bt H B 58 R S i R (@) Commitments for expenditures on properties
under development for sale

A%m

Group
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
B R 4B REE Contracted but not provided for 29,551 102,498

(b) #3E - BEAS B B i A AR IS

(b) Capital commitments for expenditures on
property, plant and equipment

E Vi NN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
BEFT | BETor | BEFIT| E¥FrT
HKS’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
BB KRB E Contracted but not
provided for 196 189 196 189
Kt ALMUEARESE  The Group's share of
RSB capital commitments of
HEAZEGHE the jointly controlled
B AR HE entities not included
PN above is as follows:
DEFELB KRB Contracted but not
provided for 2,163 22,002

183
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¥ NN
Company
2010 2009
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HKS’000
— KPR B A b 5 A1 Additional registered capital of a
LIERME AT subsidiary registered and
REINE B AR operated in Mainland China 297,000 —

ARR—REEWBAR - BERBER
BEREMARAT ([BEEE]) R20105F
NRAREREHIINEILCEESIERERE
HEARZBEERERREREAR
NE - EARLEHERIEMEZEME
REBKIET - BEMEFEN20105F12
R28BESREAHINE HLBEEE
RIHLEREE ©

REMBE  AEBEEREBEES LI
B BELCIERNMET - MEEREE
AFEINEM B AN B ¥6,0008 7T © BITE
RETIE M E AK20% BEEE IS
REBITHRERERS35008 T (78
31(c) » WEINEMEARSHE —K
AMERMEHATETRESRZ - K
BEHNBEN201MF2A15HHERSE
ITETHERBH#E -

In December 2010, Fujian Minxin Investment Consultants
Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Minxin"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, applied for change of its company name to
Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., broaden its business
scope and increase its registered capital to HK$300 million
to the Fujian Provincial Bureau of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation (“FTEC”). Fujian Minxin obtained
the Certificate of Approval from FTEC on 28th December
2010.

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group has injected
HK$60 million, being not less than 20% of the increased
registered capital pursuant to the requirement imposed
by FTEC, into Fujian Minxin as additional registered capital,
financed partially by the revolving bank loan of HK$35
million (Note 31(c)). The additional registered capital has
been audited by a local registered firm of certified public
accountants and the new business license was issued by
Administration for Industry and Commerce of Fujian on
15th February 2011.
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72010F12A318 * AEERARFR At 31st December 2010, the Group and the Company had
BAAREE 2B HEmMAER KRR future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under
ZEERENKAT : non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
rEH NS
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

BETrT | BETIT | BETR| BETT
HK$’000 |  HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

P b 2 Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 341 607 1,987 1,973
F_FEEFERFA In the second to fifth
(BIEEEMF) year inclusive 69 48 1,937 —
410 655 3,924 1,973
R2010F12A31H @ AEBERARFR At 31st December 2010, the Group and the Company had
N A BSH 2 48 2 1 & i 20 7R 2K e URER future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
ZEEBRENKAT : under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
rEH AT
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
BYFT| BT | BT | EEFT
HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
B EE Land and buildings
EF—FNA Within one year 6,188 6,644 3,092 3,543
F_FEEFRFA In the second to fifth
(BREEEMF) year inclusive 6,558 12,470 4,236 7,052
12,746 19,114 7,328 10,595
AEBEH s AEREEMEZHESF The lease terms for commercial and residential properties
HBE—FERFIE HEHRANZHES leased out by the Group range from one to six years and

THEEMRE ° with fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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from operations

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Share of results of associates

Fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest income from bank deposits

Interest expenses

Net exchange gains

Changes in working capital:

Increase in properties under
development for sale

Decrease/(increase) in deferred
acquisition costs

Decrease in insurance receivable

Decrease in reinsurance assets

Decrease in other debtors

Increase in prepaid taxes

(Increase)/decrease in other
prepayment and deposits

Increase in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

(Decrease)/increase in insurance
contracts

Decrease in insurance payable

Increase in other creditors and
accruals

Increase in deposits received on
sale of properties under
development for sale

Net cash outflow from operations

2010

BETT
HK$’000

251,365

(233,616)
(12,028)

(16,864)

1,369
(1,482)

110
(943)
792
(365)
(137,009)
2,590
3,044
1,808
153
(5,975)
(1,174)
(3,342)

(10,109)
(3,188)

27,688

72,194

(64,982)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow

2009

BETT

HK$'000

176,834

(185,873)
(5,657)

(11,253)

28
1,878

76
(1,533)

2,477
(28)
(99,012)
(2,565)

1,651

356

181

8,095

(880)

3,582
(2,213)

27,050

(86,806)
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For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related party
transactions which were carried out in the normal course
of the Group'’s business are as follows:

(@) As of 31st December 2010, the Group and the
Company had deposits with jointly controlled
financial institutions totaling HK$27.12 million (2009:
HK$172.76 million) and HK$16.14 million (2009:
HKS$161.52 million) respectively. The deposits carry
interest at normal commercial rates and have
generated interest income of HK$0.3 million (2009:
HK$0.5 million) and HK$0.2 million (2009: HK$0.34
million) to the Group and the Company for the year.

(b) Gross insurance premium less commission paid
totaling HK$4.81 million (2009: HK$5.22 million) was
derived from business referred to a subsidiary by a
jointly controlled entity during the year. Those
insurance policies underwritten by the Group were
contracted at prices and terms not less favourable
than those contracted with other third party
customers of the Group.
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An amount of HK$1.88 million (2009: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine Company Limited
(“Vigour Fine”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of certain management
services which include the provision of directors to
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to a
management agreement.

During the year, the Group drew down a short-term
advance of RMB40 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$46.12 million) from FIDHC, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The short-
term advance was unsecured, bearing interest at
Renminbi lending rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China and has been fully repaid during the
year. The Group paid interest of approximately
RMBO0.07 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.08 million) to FIDHC during the year.

Key management personnel

The senior executives’emolument for the year ended

12A31B8IEFE 220 - 31st December 2010 and 2009 are detailed as
follows:

2010 2009

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HKS'000

B & Fees 1,108 1,199
e FEREMZE Salaries, housing and other allowances,

gy REWA = and benefits in kind 6,807 6,504

RIREFIFFEIHE R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 120 72

Re Bonus 3,252 2,740

11,287 10,515
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In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these

consolidated financial statements, a summary of

significant events after the reporting period are disclosed

as follows:

(a)

In January 2011, the Group drew down a short-term
advance of RMB36.89 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$43.58 million) from FIDHC. The
short-term advance was unsecured, bearing interest
at Renminbi lending rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China and has been fully repaid, together
with the interest of approximately RMBO0.12 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.14 million), to
FIDHC in January 2011.

At the request of China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”), the Company has on 1st March
2011 given an undertaking to CBRC that, subject to
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
(including but not limited to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange), the
Company will in appropriate circumstances arrange
for its shareholding in XIB to be gradually reduced
in the future, with a view that the Company will
eventually completely exit its shareholding in XIB.In
addition, it is the requirement of CBRC that the
combined shareholding of the Company and FIDHC
shall be reduced to within 20% within 3 years. FIDHC
has a 12% interest in XIB.The Company understands
that it may need to reduce its shareholding in XIB
within such timeframe to comply with the
requirement of CBRC.
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The timing, manner and terms of any such reduction
have not been determined and, other than the
undertaking, there is no negotiation in progress or
agreement entered into in this regard.

The Company has been assessing the potential
financial impact of the proposed reduction of the
shareholding in XIB and will continue to evaluate the
applicable accounting treatment in a timely manner
taking into account whether it will have the ability
to exercise significant influence over the
management of XIB subject to and in accordance
with the terms of any new constitutional documents
of XIB to be implemented when the Company’s
shareholding in XIB is reduced. As the manner and
terms of the proposed reduction of shareholding in
XIB have not yet been determined, the resulting
financial impact on the Company cannot be
determined at this stage yet.
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December 2010 are as follows:

Location

Shops 7 & 8 on ground floor including
store 8 on the cockloft therein and
the whole of 1st and 2nd floors
Winfield Building

847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong

22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza
158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China

Carpark Nos. #24 to #27 and #42 to #48
Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza
158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian

The People’s Republic of China

Unit €2, 17/F, Hua Fu Building
121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China

BH
EwE
Lease

expiry

2049

2044

2044

2063

A5
i 3
Group's
attributable

interest

(%)

100

100

100

100

Details of the Group’s principal property interests as at 31st

BORE

AER
Approximate B2
gross floor Existing
area use

(F 5 Rsq. ft.)
14,841 A%
Commercial
41,288 o
Commercial
5,186 5
Commercial
1,225 TE
Residential
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(Continued)
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BY THE GROUP

(b) Mt & (b) Under development for sale
iS-1| Hheg
TR it HE FhRR EER
K& TRAH ERE Group’s Approximate  BERZ
Stage of Expected Lease attributable ~ grossfloor  Existing
g Location completion completion date expiry interest area use
%) (FhKsq.m)

)  HE 2% Famous Villa i34l 201 2077 100 80,730 frx
PEARKNETEHE Dabaidang Park West Under construction Residential
FNTRNE Hong Xi Road North
HOMIRR Export Processing Zone East
BERL Suzhou New District
AABEIEREH Suzhou, Jiangsu

The People’s Republic of China
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